
GULF BREEZE CITY COUNCIL 

EXECUTIVE MEETING AGENDA  

 
 

WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 30, 2016 

EXECUTIVE MEETING, 6:30 P.M. 

  COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
 

1. ROLL CALL 

2. PRESENTATION 
 
Year End Report on Gulf Breeze Financial Services Investments 

3. ACTION AGENDA ITEMS  

A. Deadman’s Island, Challenge of “ Finding of No Significant Impact” 

B. Emergency Repairs to Deadman’s Island Isthmus 

C. Resolution No. 34-16 – Capital Trust Agency Bonds - Plan of Finance for Elim Senior 

Housing, Inc.  

D. Resolution No. 35-16 – Capital Trust Agency Bonds - Plan of Finance for NV Homestead 

Apartments, LP. 

E. Resolution No. 36-16 – Capital Trust Agency Bonds - Plan of Finance for Osceola Health 

Care, Ltd.   

F. Resolution No. 37-16 – Capital Trust Agency – Plan of Finance for Inspired Independent 

Living of Palm Bay 

G. Resolution No. 38-16 – Capital Trust Agency – Plan of Finance for Inspired Living at 

Jacksonville 

H. Declaration of Surplus Property, Fire Department  

I. Interlocal Agreement between the Santa Rosa County Supervisor of Elections Office and the 

City of Gulf Breeze  

J. Invoice for Legal Services provided by Galloway/Johnson/Tompkins/Burr and Smith 

K. Invoice for Legal Services provided by Messer Caparello P.A. 

L. Invoice for Legal Services provided by Bryant Miller Olive P.A. 

M. Invoice for Legal Services provided by Jenner & Block LLP 

N. Invoice for Legal Services provided by Smolker, Bartlett, Loeb, Hinds and Sheppard, P.A. 

O. Pensacola Bay Bridge Replacement Project, lane width for emergency vehicles during 

construction 

4. NEW ITEMS 

5. INFORMATIONAL  ITEMS 

6. PUBLIC FORUM 

7. ADJOURNMENT 

If any person decides to appeal any decisions made with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or public hearing, such person may need 

to insure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and any evidence upon which the appeal is to be 

based. The public is invited to comment on matters before the City Council upon seeking and receiving recognition from the Chair.   If you are a 

person with a disability who needs accommodation in order to participate in a public hearing you are entitled to the provision of certain assistance.  

Please contact the City Clerk’s office at (850) 934-5115 or at 1070 Shoreline Drive, Gulf Breeze at least one (1) week prior to the date of the public 

hearing. 

 

 

 



Gity of gun Breeze

Memorandum
To: Buz Eddy, City Manager

Nathan G. Ford~!SSistant to City ManagerFrom:

Date: November 23, 2016

Subject: Deadman's Island Responsefor Challengeto Federal Registry

In October 2016, residents had questioned City Staff of the potential indirect impact to Deadman's

Island/FL100 from the proposed PensacolaBayBridge. Deadman's Island is a fragile John H. Chafee

Coastal Barrier ResourceUnit set aside for conservation only. This 10 acre site owned and maintained

by the City of Gulf Breezecontains historic, cultural, and environmental resources. Prior research

indicates that the current PensacolaBayBridge hasan indirect impact on Deadman's Island/FL 100 in

the form of accelerated erosion to the shoreline of Deadman's Island/FL 100, causinga deficit to the

sediment budget, and preventing natural renourishment. The new PensacolaBayBridge is anticipated

to be constructed astwice the sizeof the current bridge.

During the October 24, 2016 City Council meeting, staff presented a synopsisof the permitting process

required of the proposed PensacolaBayBridge construction project. City Council appointed an

exploratory committee to discussthe permitting processand further researchwhat should be done to

clarify if any investigation of potential indirect impact(s) were conducted with regard to Deadman's

Island/FL 100. The PensacolaBay Bridge Impact to Deadman's Island Committee determined to send a

letter to regulating agenciesand inquire if a review of Deadman's Island/FL 100 was completed. The

letter was sent via email on November 14, 2016. At this point, no agencieshave replied with specific

information related to a Deadman's Island/FL100.

An Environmental Assessment(EA)of Deadman's Island/FL100 is required under the National

Environmental PolicyAct (NEPA),requiring federal agenciesto assessthe environmental effects of

proposed construction activity. The Florida Department of Transportation's Environmental Assessment

(EA),which for their purposes is also the Project Development and Environment (PD&E)Study, according

to 40 C.F.R.§1508.7 and 1508.8 should critically review the direct, indirect and cumulative effects of the

bridge replacement project. The official posting in the Federal Register (FR)was July 25th. The City of

Gulf Breezehas 150 days after the (FR)posting to challenge the EA/PD&E(December zz=).

The PensacolaBay Bridge Impact to Deadman's Island Committee met again on November rz". Staff

informed the committee of a discussionwith a legal firm specializing in environmental matters. The firm

indicated that the City always hasthe ability to exercise its right to protect its property and assets. In

this case,proceeding to seek information from permitting and review agenciesand challenging the

Findingsof No Significant Impact (FONSI)would offer little if any liability. The Committee determined to

continue to pursue information on how Deadman's Island/FL 100was reviewed and will be reviewed for



indirect impact(s) from the proposed new Pensacola Bay Bridge. Failing to acquire any significant

information prior to December s". the Committee recommended challenging the FONSI.

Recommendation: That City Council direct Staff to notify the Florida Department of Transportation and

the Federal Highway Administration through appropriate processesthat the City wishes to challenge the

Findingsof No Significant Impact(s) to Deadman's Island/FL100 in the PensacolaBayBridge

Construction Project.



GitY ofguu Breeze

Request for Information - Deadman's Island - Gulf Breeze, FL:

The City of Gulf Breeze has become aware that Deadman's Island/FL 100 may not have been identified

under an indirect impact study with regard to the Pensacola Bay Bridge construction project now in

federal review. Prior research indicates that the current Pensacola Bay Bridge has an indirect impact on

Deadman's Island/FL 100 in the form of accelerated erosion to the shoreline of Deadman's Island/FL

100, causing a deficit to the sediment budget, and preventing natural renourishment. In recent years,

historic and cultural resources at this site have been unearthed, including human remains due to

erosion. The new Pensacola Bay Bridge, anticipated as twice the size as the current Pensacola Bay

Bridge, will be constructed less than a mile from Deadman's Island/FL 100.

The City of Gulf Breeze owns and maintains Deadman's Island/FL 100, a federally grant funded 10-acre

coastal ecosystem containing historic, cultural, and environmental resources. Deadman's Island/FL 100

is a unique wetland Juncus saltmarsh ecosystem also containing a dune ecosystem, seagrass ecosystem,

oyster reef, migratory bird drop zone, 100 year old marine oak hammock, pine forest ecosystem, prickly

pear colony and estuary. Deadman's Island/FL 100 includes USFish and Wildlife Service priority species

which are either federally endangered, threatened or state species of concern, including a foraging area

for Gulf Sturgeon. Deadman's Island/FL 100 is identified as a John H. Chafee Coastal Barrier Resource

Unit set aside for conservation only.

As an exploratory ad-hoc committee appointed by the Gulf Breeze City Council, we are submitting this

letter in order to gather considerations related to an assessment of indirect impact(s) to Deadman's

Island/FL 100 from the conceptual Pensacola Bay Bridge. Specifically we seek to learn the following:

What information was given in the Environmental Assessment (EA) to your agency about

Deadman's Island/FL 100?

Was sufficient information given to complete the review in evaluating an indirect impact study

to Deadman's Island/FL 100?

What potential impacts have been considered regarding Deadman's island/FL 100 in the

Findings of No Significant Impact (FONSI)?

With regard to your department, have any and all impacts to Deadman's island/FL 100 been

considered?

Was a Section 7 Consult or Biological Opinion produced on Deadman's island/FL 100 for possible

indirect impact from erosion of a coastal area on existing cultural historic or environmental

resources?



We hope to receive feedback from you soon, as the Federal Register indicates a closure of any

response or inquiries to the permitting process related to the Pensacola Bay Bridge Construction

Project as December 22nd 2016. Please submit feedback related to our information request to

Nathan Ford, Assistant to the City Manager, City of Gulf Breeze, nford@gulfbreezefl.gov, P.O. Box

640, 1070 Shoreline Drive, Gulf Breeze, FL32562-0640.

Respectfully,

Bill Wein, Chair

Pensacola Bay Bridge Impact to Deadman's Island Committee, City of Gulf Breeze

cc: Florida Department of Environmental Protection

USArmy Corps of Engineers, Jacksonville

Escambia County, Florida

Santa RosaCounty, Florida

Florida Department ofTransportation

City of Pensacola

Department of Economic Opportunity, Bureau of Comprehensive Planning

Florida Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services

Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission

USCoast Guard

USDepartment of Transportation

(850) 934-5100 • FAX (850) 934-5114

POSTOFFICEBOX640 • 1070 SHORELINEDRIVE • GULFBREEZE,FLORIDA32562



































 

1 

RESOLUTION 34‐16 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GULF BREEZE, 

FLORIDA, APPROVING A PLAN OF  FINANCE  IN ORDER TO  FINANCE 

OR REFINANCE, INCLUDING THROUGH REIMBURSEMENT, THE COSTS 

OF  THE  SENIOR  LIVING  FACILITY  (AS  HEREINAFTER  DEFINED) 

LOCATED IN THE STATE OF FLORIDA; APPROVING THE ISSUANCE OF 

NOT  EXCEEDING  $90,000,000  CAPITAL  TRUST  AGENCY  REVENUE 

BONDS  FOR  THE  PURPOSE  OF  FINANCING  A  LOAN  PROGRAM  TO 

ASSIST IN FINANCING SUCH SENIOR LIVING FACILITY; APPROVING A 

HEREIN  DESCRIBED  AMENDMENT  TO  INTERLOCAL  AGREEMENT 

CREATING THE CAPITAL TRUST AGENCY; PROVIDING FOR REPEAL OF 

CONFLICTING PROVISIONS; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

  WHEREAS, the City Council (the “City Council”) of Gulf Breeze, Florida (the “City”), a 

municipal corporation of  the State of Florida  (the “State”), has heretofore adopted Resolution 

No. 14‐99 dated as of  July 19, 1999  (the “Original Resolution”), and entered  into an  Interlocal 

Agreement between the City and the Town of Century, Florida, dated as of August 2, 1999, as 

amended  by  Amendment  No.  1  through  No.  70  (collectively,  the  “Enabling  Agreement”), 

approving  the  creation of  the Capital Trust Agency  (the  “Agency”),  a  legal entity and public 

agency  of  the  State,  organized  and  existing  under  the  provisions  of  Chapter  163,  Part  I,  and 

Chapter 159, Part  II, Florida Statutes, Ordinance No. 05‐97 duly enacted by  the City Council, as 

amended, and  its Articles of  Incorporation, as amended and other applicable provisions of  law 

(collectively the “Act”), to enable public, private and not‐for‐profit organizations to obtain public 

assistance  in  financing  and  refinancing,  including  through  reimbursement,  certain  beneficial 

projects or programs that benefit, enhance and/or serve a public purpose; and 

 

  WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act and  in accordance with the provisions of the Original 

Resolution,  the  Agency  did  on  November  10,  2016,  take  official  action  by  adopting  its 

preliminary  resolution  (the  “Agency  Resolution”)  indicating  its  intent  to  authorize  the 

financing,  including  through  reimbursement,  of  the  hereinafter  described  project,  and  the 

issuance from time to time of revenue bonds (the “Bonds”) by the Agency for a loan program 

for  the  purposes,  among  other  things,  of  financing  or  refinancing,  including  through 

reimbursement,  (i)  certain  capital  improvements  for  or  to  a  facility,  as  described  in  Schedule  I 

attached hereto, which, by  this reference  thereto,  is  incorporated herein  (collectively,  the “Senior 

Living  Facility”),  to  provide  independent  living  and  supportive  care  for  the  elderly,  (ii)  any 

necessary debt service  reserve  for  the Bonds;  (iii) capitalized  interest on  the Bonds; and  (iv)  the 

costs associated with the issuance of the Bonds (the “Project”); and 

 

  WHEREAS, the City has been advised that the Agency desires to issue the Bonds in an 

aggregate principal amount of not exceeding $90,000,000 (the exact amount to be determined by 

the  appropriate  official  of  the Agency,  as  being  the  amount  required  to  fund  the  financing 

herein authorized),  to  finance  the Project on behalf of Elim Senior Housing,  Inc., a Minnesota 



 

2 

corporation, qualified  to do business  in Florida,  and/or one or more  related  and/or  affiliated 

entities, whose principal place of business is 7485 Office Ridge Circle, Eden Prairie, Minnesota 

55344 (as applicable, the “Borrower”) to fund a program herein described (the “Plan of Finance”), 

such Senior Living Facility to be owned, operated and managed the Borrower; and 

 

WHEREAS,  the  proposed  Senior  Living  Facility  is  appropriate  to  the  needs  and 

circumstances of the community in which it will be located and will serve a public purpose by 

(i)  providing  gainful  employment  and  making  a  significant  contribution  to  the  economic 

growth of the local community, (ii) promoting commerce within the State, (iii) serving a public 

purpose  by  providing  safe,  decent  and  accessible  housing  facilities  for  the  elderly,  and  (iv) 

advancing the economic prosperity and the general welfare of the State and its people; and 

 

WHEREAS, in order to advance and further the public purposes set forth in the Act, it is 

necessary and in the public interest to facilitate the financing of the Senior Living Facility and to 

facilitate and encourage  the planning and development of such Senior Living Facility without 

regard  to  the  boundaries  between  counties, municipalities,  special  districts,  and  other  local 

governmental bodies or agencies in order to more effectively and efficiently serve the interests 

of the greatest number of people in the widest area practicable; and 

 

  WHEREAS,  Section  147(f)  of  the  Internal  Revenue  Code  of  1986,  as  amended  (the 

“Code”),  requires  public  approval  of  certain  revenue  bonds  by  an  applicable  elected 

representative or governmental unit on behalf of which such bonds are to be issued, following a 

public hearing; and 

 

  WHEREAS, (i) notice of such public hearing was given in the form required by the Code 

by publication at least fourteen (14) days prior to such public hearing in the Gulf Breeze News on 

November 17, 2016, and  (ii)  the Bonds and  the Plan of Finance have been  submitted  to  such 

public hearing held on behalf of the City Council of the City of Gulf Breeze, Florida (the “City 

Council”) on December 5, 2016; and 

 

  WHEREAS,  the City Manager has conducted  the public hearing on behalf of  the City 

Council and provided reasonable opportunity for all interested persons to express their views, 

both  orally  and  in writing  and  diligently  and  conscientiously  considered  all  comments  and 

concerns expressed by such individuals, if any; and  

 

  WHEREAS,  the City Council desires  to approve  the Bonds and  the  issuance and  sale 

thereof pursuant to the Plan of Finance and to grant all approvals required or contemplated by 

Section 147(f) of  the Code,  to  express  its approval of  the action  taken by  the Agency and  its 

officials pursuant  to  the Agency Resolution, and  to grant all other approvals  required by  the 

Enabling Agreement, as amended and the Original Resolution in connection with the issuance 

and sale of the Bonds;  

 



 

3 

  NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

GULF BREEZE, FLORIDA: 

 

  SECTION 1.  PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE AND REPORT APPROVED.      

 

The City Council  hereby  approves  the  form  of  and  the manner  of publication  of  the 

Notice  of  Public Hearing  (the  ʺNoticeʺ)  published  on November  17,  2016,  in  the Gulf  Breeze 

News,  a  newspaper  of  general  circulation  in  the  jurisdiction  of  the  City.    The  City  Council 

hereby  approves  the  report of  the public hearing  conducted by  the City Manager,  a  copy of 

which is attached as Exhibit “A” hereto.  Such Notice and other means and methods utilized by 

the City  to give notice  of purpose,  time  and date  of  the public hearing provided  reasonable 

notice sufficient to inform residents of the City of the proposed Bonds.   

 

SECTION 2.  BONDS AND PLAN OF FINANCE APPROVED.      

 

For purposes of the Act, the City hereby approves the Plan of Finance described herein, 

and the issuance of the Bonds described in the Notice.  The Agency and its officers, employees, 

agents and attorneys are hereby authorized from time to time to take all action, to execute and 

deliver such authorizations, approvals, certificates and documents, and to enter into, on behalf 

of the Agency, such interlocal agreements, interest rate swap or hedge transactions, investment 

agreements,  repurchase  agreements,  bond  credit  or  insurance  agreements,  reimbursement 

agreements, and other agreements, approvals or  instruments deemed necessary or convenient 

to  effect,  implement,  maintain  and  continue  the  Plan  of  Finance,  the  financing,  including 

through reimbursement, of the Project through the issuance from time to time of the Bonds and 

the  purposes  for  which  the  Bonds  are  to  be  issued,  including,  without  limitation,  the 

Amendment  (hereinafter defined)  and  the Agency Resolution.   No  obligation  of  the Agency 

under  any  such  agreement  shall  constitute  an obligation of  the City  except  to  the  extent  the 

same  may  be  expressly  approved  by  the  City.    The  Bonds  shall  be  limited  and  special 

obligations of  the Agency, and  shall not  constitute a pledge of  the  faith and  credit or  taxing 

power of or constitute an obligation of the City.  

 

  SECTION 3.  AMENDMENT TO THE ENABLING AGREEMENT APPROVED.   

 

Pursuant  to  the  Enabling  Agreement,  there  is  hereby  approved  the  execution  and 

delivery of Amendment No.  71  to  the Enabling Agreement  (the  “Amendment”)  to  effect  the 

approvals set forth in Section 1 and Section 2 hereof.  Such Amendment shall be in substantially 

the form attached hereto as Exhibit “B,” and the Mayor is authorized to execute and deliver the 

same on behalf of the City Council, with such changes not inconsistent herewith as the Mayor 

shall approve, his execution thereof to conclusively establish such approval. 

 

  SECTION 4.  TEFRA APPROVAL.   

 



 

4 

After diligent  and  conscientious  consideration  of  the  views  expressed  by  the persons 

appearing at the public hearing, the City Council hereby approves the Agency’s Plan of Finance 

which includes (i) the issuance by the Agency of not exceeding $90,000,000 aggregate principal 

amount of revenue bonds for all purposes of the Enabling Agreement, as amended, and for all 

purposes of the Original Resolution and (ii) the issuance by the Agency of either taxable or tax‐

exempt , or both, bonds in an amount not exceeding $90,000,000 for all purposes under Section 

147(f) of the Code. 

 

  SECTION 5.  REPEALING CLAUSE.      

 

All  resolutions  or  parts  thereof  of  the  City  in  conflict  with  the  provisions  herein 

contained are, to the extent of such conflict, hereby superseded and repealed. 

 

 

 

 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 

 

 

 

 

   



 

5 

  SECTION 6.  EFFECTIVE DATE.      

 

This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption this 5th day of December, 

2016. 

 

 

 

              GULF BREEZE, FLORIDA 

              CITY COUNCIL 

 

 

 

(SEAL)  By:  _________________________________ 

Matt E. Dannheisser, Mayor 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

By:  __________________________________ 

Stephanie D. Lucas, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
 

A‐1 
 

EXHIBIT “A” TO RESOLUTION 

 

REPORT OF HEARING OFFICER 

ELIM SENIOR HOUSING, INC. 

 

This instrument shall constitute the official report of the undersigned designated official 

of the City of Gulf Breeze, Florida (the “City”), a municipal corporation of the State of Florida, 

with respect to a public hearing scheduled and held by the City on December 5, 2016, for and on 

behalf of the Capital Trust Agency (the “Agency”), a legal entity and public agency created and 

existing  under  Chapter  163,  Part  I,  and  Chapter  617,  Florida  Statutes,  and  established  and 

empowered by the provisions of Chapter 159, Part II, Florida Statutes, Chapter 163, Part I, et seq., 

Chapter  166,  Part  II,  Florida  Statutes,  Chapter  617,  Florida  Statutes  and  other  applicable 

provisions  of  law,  in  connection with  the  proposed  issuance  of  the Agency’s  not  exceeding 

$90,000,000  revenue bonds  (the “Bonds”) on behalf of Elim Senior Housing,  Inc., a Minnesota 

corporation, qualified  to do business  in Florida,  and/or one or more  related  and/or  affiliated 

entities, whose principal place of business is 7485 Office Ridge Circle, Eden Prairie, Minnesota 

55344 (as applicable, the “Borrower”).  The proceeds of the Bonds will be loaned to the Borrower 

for financing or refinancing, including through reimbursement, the capital improvements for or 

to  the  independent  living/assisted  living  facilities of  the Borrower,  to be situated on a 20 acre 

parcel  located at  the northwest corner of  the  intersection of County Road 103 and Woodridge 

Drive, within the city limits of the City of Wildwood, Florida, Sumter County, Florida, having a 

mailing  address  of  12110  County  Road  103,  Oxford,  Florida  and  expected  to  consist  of 

approximately  340,000  square  feet  of  building  space  and  ancillary  facilities,  accommodating 

approximately 101 assisted  living units, 48 memory  care units, 98  independent units, 7 guest 

units and a town center (collectively, the “Senior Living Facility”). 

 

  The public hearing was duly advertised in the Gulf Breeze News, a newspaper of general 

circulation in the jurisdiction of the City, on November 17, 2016.  The proof of publication was 

presented to me at such hearing, and a copy is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” (the “Notice”). 

 

  The hearing commenced at the time and location stated in the Notice.  At such hearing, 

interested individuals were afforded reasonable opportunity to express their views, both orally 

and in writing, on all matters pertaining to the plan of finance and the financing of the Senior 

Living  Facility.    Information  about  the  proposed  Bonds,  the  location  of  the  Senior  Living 

Facility, and the proposed use of the proceeds were presented.  When the information had been 

presented, opportunity was given for members of the public in attendance to give their input.  It 

was noted that no written communication was received.   

 

 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]   



 

 
 

A‐2 
 

 

No  interested party was  in  attendance  at  the public hearing.   Minutes of  the Council 

Meeting, including the public hearing, will be kept on file with the City Clerk as referenced in 

Exhibit “B” hereto.  The undersigned then concluded the hearing.   

 

              Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

              By: ________________________________ 

                Edwin Eddy, City Manager 

                City of Gulf Breeze, Florida 



 

 
 

A‐3 
 

 

EXHIBIT “A” TO REPORT OF HEARING OFFICER 

ELIM SENIOR HOUSING, INC. 

 

 

PROOF OF PUBLICATION 

 

 

 

 

 

[FOLLOWS] 

 



 

 
 

A‐4 
 

EXHIBIT “C” TO REPORT OF HEARING OFFICER 

ELIM SENIOR HOUSING, INC. 

 

 

 

MINUTES OF COUNCIL MEETING INCLUDING 

 PUBLIC HEARING ON FILE WITH CITY CLERK  

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 1 

EXHIBIT “B” TO RESOLUTION 

 

AMENDMENT NO. 71 TO INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 

 

This AMENDMENT NO. 71 TO INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT (this “Amendment No. 

71”) is made and entered into as of the 19th day of December, 2016, by and among the CITY OF 

GULF BREEZE, FLORIDA, a municipal corporation of the State of Florida (“Gulf Breeze”) and 

the  TOWN  OF  CENTURY,  FLORIDA,  a  municipal  corporation  of  the  State  of  Florida 

(“Century”).  Gulf Breeze and Century may collectively be referred to herein as the “Parties.” 

 

WITNESSETH: 

 

WHEREAS,  pursuant  to  an  Interlocal  Agreement  dated  as  of  August  2,  1999,  as 

amended by Amendments No. 1 through No. 70 (collectively, the “Enabling Agreement”), the 

Parties  hereto  have  heretofore  provided  for  the  creation  of  the  Capital  Trust  Agency  (the 

“Agency”), to enable public, private and not‐for‐profit organizations to obtain public assistance 

in  financing certain projects or programs  that benefit, enhance and/or serve a public purpose; 

and  

 

  WHEREAS, Elim Senior Housing, Inc., a Minnesota corporation, qualified to do business 

in Florida, and/or one or more related and/or affiliated entities (as applicable, the “Borrower”), 

has represented to the Agency that, acting for itself or through its affiliates, it is engaged in, among 

other  things,  the  acquiring,  constructing,  developing,  installing  and  equipping  of  senior  living 

facilities; and 

 

  WHEREAS, on November 10, 2016, the Agency approved a request by the Borrower that 

the Agency  issue  its  revenue bonds  in  a principal  amount not  to  exceed $90,000,000  (the  exact 

amount  to  be  determined  by  the  appropriate  official  of  the  Agency,  as  being  the  amount 

required  to  fund  the  financing  herein  authorized),  in  one  or more  series  from  time  to  time 

(collectively,  the  “Bonds”)  and  loan  the net proceeds  thereof  to  the Borrower,  for  the purpose, 

among  other  things,  of  financing  or  refinancing,  including  through  reimbursement,  (i)  certain 

capital improvements for or to a facility, as described in Schedule I attached hereto, which, by this 

reference  thereto,  is  incorporated  herein  (collectively,  the  “Senior  Living  Facility”),  to  provide 

independent living and supportive care for the elderly, (ii) any necessary debt service reserve for 

the Bonds; (iii) capitalized interest on the Bonds; and (iv) the costs associated with the issuance of 

the Bonds (the “Project”); and 

 

WHEREAS, the Agency will issue its Bonds on a case‐by‐case basis after review by the 

Agency,  to  provide  financing  and  refinancing  from  time  to  time  for  individual  projects  or 

groups of projects, or eligible financing programs, based upon the credit pledged therefor from 

one or more of  the projects,  the Borrower, a sponsor, a credit enhancement  facility,  if any, or 

from the revenues of any such programs; and  

 



 

 

 2 

WHEREAS, Section 7 of the Enabling Agreement requires that as a condition precedent 

to the Agency issuing the Bonds, the Agency must obtain the prior written approval, evidenced 

by resolution, from the governing bodies of Century and Gulf Breeze approving such issuance 

and  approving  an  amendment  to  the  Enabling  Agreement  specifically  authorizing  such 

issuance.   Such approval evidenced by appropriate resolutions has been obtained, authorizing 

the execution and delivery of this Amendment No. 71 to the Enabling Agreement with respect 

to the financing herein described; and 

 

WHEREAS,  the  Parties  desire  to  amend  the  Enabling  Agreement  to  permit  and 

authorize the Agency to issue the Bonds herein described and loan the proceeds to the Borrower 

in order to provide financing, including through reimbursement, for the Project; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties hereby agree as follows: 

 

SECTION 1.  AMENDMENT OF ENABLING AGREEMENT APPROVED. 

 

This Amendment No. 71 is entered into pursuant to Section 7 of the Enabling Agreement 

for the purpose of authorizing the Agency to issue the Bonds and to finance projects of the type 

and character of the Senior Living Facility. 

 

SECTION 2.  BONDS, PROGRAM, PLAN OF FINANCE APPROVED. 

 

The Parties do hereby approve and authorize the Bonds, and the issuance of Bonds from 

time  to  time,  in  one  or  more  series,  in  an  aggregate  principal  amount  of  not  to  exceed 

$90,000,000 (the exact amount to be determined by an appropriate official of the Agency to be 

sufficient  to  enable  the  financing,  including  through  reimbursement,  of  the  Project).    Each 

installment or issue of such Bonds shall be designated by series, in such manner as the Agency 

shall determine, so as to separately identify each such installment or issue.  The Agency and its 

officers, employees, agents and attorneys are hereby authorized  to enter  into, on behalf of  the 

Agency,  from  time  to  time,  interlocal agreements, cash management agreements,  interest  rate 

swap  or  hedge  transactions,  investment  agreements,  repurchase  agreements,  bond  credit  or 

insurance agreements, escrow agreements, reimbursement agreements, security documents and 

other  agreements,  approvals  or  instruments  deemed  necessary  or  convenient  to  effect  or 

implement the financing, including through reimbursement, of the Project through the issuance 

of  the Bonds,  and  the purposes  and programs  for which  the Bonds  are  to  be  issued  and  to 

conform  the purposes  stated  in  the Articles of  Incorporation of  the Agency  to authorizations 

herein contained.   No obligation of the Agency under any such agreement or instrument shall 

constitute  an  obligation  of Century  or Gulf  Breeze.    The Bonds  shall  be  limited  and  special 

obligations of  the Agency, payable  from  the revenues or receipts of  the programs or projects, 

payments by the Borrower, a sponsor, or other sources relating to the purpose for which they 

are  issued, all  in the  indentures for the Bonds.   The Bonds shall not constitute a pledge of the 

faith and credit or taxing power of or constitute an obligation of Century or of Gulf Breeze.  

 



 

 

 3 

SECTION 3.  ADMINISTRATIVE FEES AND EXPENSES FOR CENTURY. 

 

Upon the issuance of each series or installment of Bonds, Century shall be paid by either 

the Agency or Gulf Breeze, solely from amounts received from the Borrower, the sum specified 

on Schedule II attached hereto, which, by this reference thereto, is incorporated herein. 

 

SECTION 4.  ENABLING AGREEMENT CONTINUED.   

 

The  Enabling  Agreement,  as  amended  hereby,  is  hereby  ratified,  confirmed  and 

approved and shall otherwise continue in full force and effect.  Nothing in this Amendment No. 

71  shall  be  deemed  to  adversely  affect  the  authorizations  in  the  Enabling  Agreement  as  it 

existed prior to the effective date of this Amendment No. 71, or to adversely affect the interests 

of the holders of any Bonds issued or to be issued pursuant to such authorizations.   Except as 

and  only  to  the  extent  specifically  amended  hereby,  such  Enabling  Agreement  is  hereby 

incorporated by reference. 

 

SECTION 5.  INDEMNITY. 

 

To the extent permitted by law, the Agency and Gulf Breeze shall indemnify and defend 

Century and hold Century harmless against any and all claims, losses, liabilities or damages to 

property  or  any  injury  or  death  of  any  person  or  persons  occurring  in  connection with  the 

issuance of the Bonds pursuant hereto, or in connection with the acquisition or operation of any 

project, or for any liability any way growing out of or resulting from the Enabling Agreement, 

as  amended,  this  Amendment  No.  71,  the  financing  agreements  and/or  bond  indentures 

executed in connection with the Bonds, including, without limitation, all costs and expenses of 

Century,  including reasonable attorney’s  fees,  incurred  in  the performance of any activities of 

Century  in connection with the foregoing or the enforcement of any agreement of the Agency 

herein  contained.   Any  such obligation of Gulf Breeze or  the Agency  shall be payable  solely 

from the amounts available to them for such purposes under the Bond financing or any other 

plan of  finance heretofore or hereafter undertaken by  the Agency,  and  shall not  constitute  a 

general  obligation  or  a  pledge  of  the  faith  and  credit  of Gulf  Breeze  or  the Agency,  or  an 

obligation to pay the same from any sources other than such amounts available to them for such 

purposes under the Bond financing.  

 

SECTION 6.  SEVERABILITY OF INVALID PROVISIONS. 

 

If any one or more of the covenants, agreements or provisions herein contained shall be 

held contrary to any express provisions of law or contrary to the policy of express law, though 

not expressly prohibited, or against public policy, or shall  for any reason whatsoever be held 

invalid,  then  such  covenants,  agreements  or  provisions  shall  be  null  and  void  and  shall  be 

deemed severable from the remaining covenants, agreements or provisions and shall in no way 

affect the validity of any of the other provisions hereto. 

 



 

 

 4 

  SECTION 7.  COUNTERPARTS. 

 

This  Amendment  may  be  simultaneously  executed  in  several  counterparts,  each  of 

which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the same instrument. 

 

SECTION 8.  EFFECTIVE DATE; AMENDMENTS. 

 

This  Amendment  shall  take  effect  when  duly  executed  by  the  Parties  and  filed  in 

accordance with law.  This Amendment may be amended only by written instrument signed by 

authorized  representatives  of Century  and  of Gulf  Breeze;  provided,  however,  that  no  such 

amendment which would  adversely  affect  the  rights  of  the  holders  or  owners  of  any  then 

outstanding Bonds of the Agency or of any other member shall take effect until such time as all 

necessary  consents or approvals with  respect  to  such Bonds  shall have been obtained,  in  the 

case of the rights of bondholders, or the consents and approvals of the affected members, in the 

case of the rights of members. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank]



 

 

S‐1 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF,  the Parties  have  caused  this Amendment No.  71  to  the Enabling 

Agreement to be executed by their duly authorized officers as of the date first above written. 

 

 

  CITY OF GULF BREEZE, FLORIDA 

[SEAL] 

 

 

  By: _________________________________________ 

Matt E. Dannheisser, Mayor  

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

By: __________________________________ 

       Stephanie D. Lucas, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

[Signature Page to Amendment No. 71 to Interlocal Agreement] 

   



 

 

S‐2 

 

 

  TOWN OF CENTURY, FLORIDA 

 

[SEAL] 

 

  By: ________________________________ 

         Freddie W. McCall, Sr., Mayor  

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

By: ____________________________________ 

       Leslie Howington, Town Clerk 

 

 

 

 

[Signature Page to Amendment No. 71 to Interlocal Agreement] 

 

 

 



 

 

SCHEDULE I 

 

SCHEDULE I 

 

Project Description 

 

The Senior Living Facility  consists of  capital  improvements  for or  to  the  independent 

living/assisted living facilities of the Borrower, to be situated on a 20 acre parcel located at the 

northwest corner of the intersection of County Road 103 and Woodridge Drive, within the city 

limits of  the City of Wildwood, Florida, Sumter County, Florida, having a mailing address of 

12110  County  Road  103,  Oxford,  Florida  and  expected  to  consist  of  approximately  340,000 

square feet of building space and ancillary facilities, accommodating approximately 101 assisted 

living units, 48 memory care units, 98 independent units, 7 guest units and a town center. 

 

 



 

B‐1 
 

SCHEDULE II 

 

Payment to Century 

 

$350.00 per million principal amount of each  issue, upon  issuance  thereof, but not  less 

than $2,500.00. 

 

   



 

SCHEDULE I 
 

SCHEDULE “I” TO RESOLUTION 

 

The Senior Living Facility  consists of  capital  improvements  for or  to  the  independent 

living/assisted living facilities of the Borrower, to be situated on a 20 acre parcel located at the 

northwest corner of the intersection of County Road 103 and Woodridge Drive, within the city 

limits of  the City of Wildwood, Florida, Sumter County, Florida, having a mailing address of 

12110  County  Road  103,  Oxford,  Florida  and  expected  to  consist  of  approximately  340,000 

square feet of building space and ancillary facilities, accommodating approximately 101 assisted 

living units, 48 memory care units, 98 independent units, 7 guest units and a town center. 

 

 





 

1 
4817-4077-4201.2 

RESOLUTION 35‐16 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GULF BREEZE, 

FLORIDA, APPROVING A PLAN OF  FINANCE  IN ORDER TO  FINANCE 

OR REFINANCE, INCLUDING THROUGH REIMBURSEMENT THE COSTS 

OF  THE  ACQUISITION,  CONSTRUCTION,  RENOVATION  AND 

EQUIPPING OF A MULTIFAMILY HOUSING FACILITY FOR PERSONS OF 

LOW OR MODERATE  INCOME LOCATED  IN THE STATE OF FLORIDA; 

APPROVING THE  ISSUANCE OF NOT EXCEEDING  $10,500,000 CAPITAL 

TRUST AGENCY REVENUE BONDS FOR THE PURPOSE OF FINANCING 

A  LOAN  PROGRAM  TO ASSIST  IN  FINANCING  SUCH MULTIFAMILY 

HOUSING  FACILITY;  APPROVAL  OF  A  HEREIN  DESCRIBED 

AMENDMENT TO INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT CREATING THE CAPITAL 

TRUST  AGENCY;  PROVIDING  FOR  REPEAL  OF  CONFLICTING 

PROVISIONS; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

  WHEREAS, the City Council (the “City Council”) of Gulf Breeze, Florida (the “City”), a 

municipal corporation of  the State of Florida  (the “State”), has heretofore adopted Resolution 

No. 14‐99 dated as of  July 19, 1999  (the “Original Resolution”), and entered  into an  Interlocal 

Agreement between the City and the Town of Century, Florida, dated as of August 2, 1999, as 

amended  by  Amendment  No.  1  through  No.  71  (collectively,  the  “Enabling  Agreement”), 

approving  the creation of  the Capital Trust Agency  (the “Agency”), a  legal entity and public 

agency of  the State, organized  and  existing under  the provisions of Chapter  163, Part  I,  and 

Chapter 159, Part II, Florida Statutes, Ordinance No. 05‐97 duly enacted by the City Council, as 

amended, and its Articles of Incorporation, as amended and other applicable provisions of law 

(collectively  the  “Act”),  to  enable  public,  private  and  not‐for‐profit  organizations  to  obtain 

public  assistance  in  financing  and  refinancing,  including  through  reimbursement,  certain 

beneficial projects or programs that benefit, enhance and/or serve a public purpose; and 

 

  WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act and  in accordance with the provisions of the Original 

Resolution, the Agency did on August 23, 2016, take official action by adopting its preliminary 

resolution (the “Agency Resolution”) indicating its intent to authorize the financing, including 

through reimbursement, of the hereinafter described project, and the issuance from time to time 

of  revenue bonds  (the “Bonds”) by  the Agency  for  a  loan program  for  the purposes,  among 

other  things,  of  financing  or  refinancing,  including  through  reimbursement,  the  acquisition, 

construction, renovation and equipping of a multifamily rental housing facility, as described on 

Schedule “I” attached hereto, which, by this reference thereto, is incorporated herein, to provide 

affordable housing to persons of low and moderate income (the “Project”); and 

 

  WHEREAS, the City has been advised that the Agency desires to issue the Bonds in an 

aggregate principal amount of not exceeding $10,500,000 (the exact amount to be determined by 

the  appropriate  official  of  the Agency,  as  being  the  amount  required  to  fund  the  financing 

herein authorized), to finance the Project on behalf of NV Homestead Apartments LP, a Florida 



 

2 
4817-4077-4201.2 

limited partnership, and/or one or more of  its affiliates, as described on the attached Schedule 

“I,” whose principal place of business  is 7863 Sandhill Court, West Palm Beach, Florida 33412 

(as applicable, the “Borrower”) to fund a program herein described (the “Plan of Finance”), and 

it is anticipated that CT Group will be the initial manager of the Project; and 

 

WHEREAS,  the proposed Project  is appropriate  to  the needs and circumstances of  the 

community in which it will be located and will serve a public purpose by (i) providing gainful 

employment  and  making  a  significant  contribution  to  the  economic  growth  of  the  local 

community,  (ii)  promoting  commerce  within  the  State,  (iii)  serving  a  public  purpose  by 

providing  safe,  decent  and  accessible  affordable  housing  facilities  for  persons  of  low  or 

moderate  income, and  (iv) advancing  the economic prosperity and  the general welfare of  the 

State and its people; and 

 

WHEREAS, in order to advance and further the public purposes set forth in the Act, it is 

necessary and in the public interest to facilitate the financing of the Project and to facilitate and 

encourage  the  planning  and  development  of  such  Project without  regard  to  the  boundaries 

between  counties,  municipalities,  special  districts,  and  other  local  governmental  bodies  or 

agencies in order to more effectively and efficiently serve the interests of the greatest number of 

people in the widest area practicable; and 

 

  WHEREAS,  Section  147(f)  of  the  Internal  Revenue  Code  of  1986,  as  amended  (the 

“Code”),  requires  public  approval  of  certain  revenue  bonds  by  an  applicable  elected 

representative or governmental unit on behalf of which such bonds are to be issued, following a 

public hearing; and 

 

  WHEREAS, (i) notice of such public hearing was given in the form required by the Code 

by publication at least fourteen (14) days prior to such public hearing in the Gulf Breeze News on 

September 22, 2016, and  (ii)  the Bonds and  the Plan of Finance have been  submitted  to  such 

public hearing held on behalf of the City Council of the City of Gulf Breeze, Florida (the “City 

Council”) on October 11, 2016; and 

 

  WHEREAS,  the City Manager has conducted  the public hearing on behalf of  the City 

Council and provided reasonable opportunity for all interested persons to express their views, 

both  orally  and  in writing  and  diligently  and  conscientiously  considered  all  comments  and 

concerns expressed by such individuals, if any; and  

 

  WHEREAS,  the City Council desires  to approve  the Bonds and  the  issuance and  sale 

thereof pursuant to the Plan of Finance and to grant all approvals required or contemplated by 

Section 147(f) of  the Code,  to  express  its approval of  the action  taken by  the Agency and  its 

officials pursuant  to  the Agency Resolution, and  to grant all other approvals  required by  the 

Enabling Agreement, as amended and the Original Resolution in connection with the issuance 

and sale of the Bonds;  

 



 

3 
4817-4077-4201.2 

  NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

GULF BREEZE, FLORIDA: 

 

  SECTION 1.  PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE AND REPORT APPROVED.      

 

The City Council  hereby  approves  the  form  of  and  the manner  of publication  of  the 

Notice  of  Public Hearing  (the  ʺNoticeʺ)  published  on  September  22,  2016,  in  the Gulf  Breeze 

News,  a  newspaper  of  general  circulation  in  the  jurisdiction  of  the  City.    The  City  Council 

hereby  approves  the  report of  the public hearing  conducted by  the City Manager,  a  copy of 

which is attached as Exhibit “A” hereto.  Such Notice and other means and methods utilized by 

the City  to give notice  of purpose,  time  and date  of  the public hearing provided  reasonable 

notice sufficient to inform residents of the City of the proposed Bonds.   

 

SECTION 2.  BONDS AND PLAN OF FINANCE APPROVED.      

 

For purposes of the Act, the City hereby approves the Plan of Finance described herein, 

and the issuance of the Bonds described in the Notice.  The Agency and its officers, employees, 

agents and attorneys are hereby authorized from time to time to take all action, to execute and 

deliver such authorizations, approvals, certificates and documents, and to enter into, on behalf 

of the Agency, such interlocal agreements, interest rate swap or hedge transactions, investment 

agreements,  repurchase  agreements,  bond  credit  or  insurance  agreements,  reimbursement 

agreements, and other agreements, approvals or  instruments deemed necessary or convenient 

to  effect,  implement,  maintain  and  continue  the  Plan  of  Finance,  the  financing,  including 

through reimbursement, of the Project through the issuance from time to time of the Bonds and 

the  purposes  for  which  the  Bonds  are  to  be  issued,  including,  without  limitation,  the 

Amendment  (hereinafter defined)  and  the Agency Resolution.   No  obligation  of  the Agency 

under  any  such  agreement  shall  constitute  an obligation of  the City  except  to  the  extent  the 

same  may  be  expressly  approved  by  the  City.    The  Bonds  shall  be  limited  and  special 

obligations of  the Agency, and  shall not  constitute a pledge of  the  faith and  credit or  taxing 

power of or constitute an obligation of the City.  

 

  SECTION 3.  AMENDMENT TO THE ENABLING AGREEMENT APPROVED.   

 

Pursuant  to  the  Enabling  Agreement,  there  is  hereby  approved  the  execution  and 

delivery of Amendment No.  72  to  the Enabling Agreement  (the  “Amendment”)  to  effect  the 

approvals set forth in Section 1 and Section 2 hereof.  Such Amendment shall be in substantially 

the form attached hereto as Exhibit “B,” and the Mayor is authorized to execute and deliver the 

same on behalf of the City Council, with such changes not inconsistent herewith as the Mayor 

shall approve, his execution thereof to conclusively establish such approval. 

   



 

4 
4817-4077-4201.2 

  SECTION 4.  TEFRA APPROVAL.   

 

After diligent  and  conscientious  consideration  of  the  views  expressed  by  the persons 

appearing at the public hearing, the City Council hereby approves the Agency’s Plan of Finance 

which includes (i) the issuance by the Agency of not exceeding $10,500,000 aggregate principal 

amount of revenue bonds for all purposes of the Enabling Agreement, as amended, and for all 

purposes of the Original Resolution and (ii) the issuance by the Agency of either taxable or tax‐

exempt, or both, bonds in an amount not exceeding $10,500,000 for all purposes under Section 

147(f) of the Code. 

 

  SECTION 5.  REPEALING CLAUSE.      

 

All  resolutions  or  parts  thereof  of  the  City  in  conflict  with  the  provisions  herein 

contained are, to the extent of such conflict, hereby superseded and repealed. 

 

 

 

 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 

 

 

 

 

   



 

5 
4817-4077-4201.2 

  SECTION 6.  EFFECTIVE DATE.      

 

This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption this 5th day of December, 

2016. 

 

 

              GULF BREEZE, FLORIDA 

              CITY COUNCIL 

 

 

 

(SEAL)  By:  _________________________________ 

Matt E. Dannheisser, Mayor 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

By:  __________________________________ 

Stephanie D. Lucas, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
 

A‐1 
4817-4077-4201.2 

EXHIBIT “A” TO RESOLUTION 

 

REPORT OF HEARING OFFICER 

NV HOMESTEAD APARTMENTS LP 

 

This instrument shall constitute the official report of the undersigned designated official 

of the City of Gulf Breeze, Florida (the “City”), a municipal corporation of the State of Florida, 

with respect to a public hearing scheduled and held by the City on October 11, 2016, for and on 

behalf of the Capital Trust Agency (the “Agency”), a legal entity and public agency created and 

existing  under  Chapter  163,  Part  I,  and  Chapter  617,  Florida  Statutes,  and  established  and 

empowered by  the provisions of Chapter 159, Part  II, Florida Statutes, Chapter 163, Part  I,  et 

seq., Chapter 166, Part  II, Florida Statutes, Chapter 617, Florida Statutes and other applicable 

provisions  of  law,  in  connection with  the  proposed  issuance  of  the Agency’s  not  exceeding 

$10,500,000 revenue bonds (the “Bonds”) on behalf of NV Homestead Apartments LP, a Florida 

limited partnership, or one or more of  its affiliates, and whose principal place of business  is 

7863  Sandhill  Court, West  Palm  Beach,  Florida  33412  (as  applicable,  the  “Borrower”).    The 

proceeds of  the Bonds will be  loaned  to  the Borrower  for  financing or  refinancing,  including 

through  reimbursement,  the  acquisition,  construction,  renovation  and  equipping  of  an 

approximately  92‐unit multifamily  rental  housing  facility  for  persons  of  low  and moderate 

income known as Homestead Apartments  located at 250 SW 14th Avenue, Homestead, Florida 

33030 (the “Project”). 

 

  The public hearing was duly advertised in the Gulf Breeze News, a newspaper of general 

circulation in the jurisdiction of the City, on September 22, 2016.  The proof of publication was 

presented to me at such hearing, and a copy is attached hereto as Exhibit “B” (the “Notice”). 

 

  The hearing commenced at the time and location stated in the Notice.  At such hearing, 

interested individuals were afforded reasonable opportunity to express their views, both orally 

and in writing, on all matters pertaining to the plan of finance and the financing of the Project.  

Information about the proposed Bonds, the location of the Project, and the proposed use of the 

proceeds were presented.   When  the  information had been presented, opportunity was given 

for members  of  the  public  in  attendance  to  give  their  input.    It was  noted  that  no written 

communication was received.   

 

 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]   



 

 
 

A‐2 
4817-4077-4201.2 

 

No  interested party was  in  attendance  at  the public hearing.   Minutes of  the Council 

Meeting, including the public hearing, will be kept on file with the City Clerk as referenced in 

Exhibit “C” hereto.  The undersigned then concluded the hearing.   

 

              Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

              By: ________________________________ 

                Edwin Eddy, City Manager 

                City of Gulf Breeze, Florida 



 

 
 

A‐3 
4817-4077-4201.2 

EXHIBIT “A” TO REPORT OF HEARING OFFICER 

NV HOMESTEAD APARTMENTS LP 

 

 

The  Project  consists  of  the  acquisition,  construction,  renovation  and  equipping  of  an 

approximately  92‐unit multifamily  rental  housing  facility  for  persons  of  low  and moderate 

income known as Homestead Apartments  located at 250 SW 14th Avenue, Homestead, Florida 

33030. 

 

 

   



 

 
 

A‐4 
4817-4077-4201.2 

EXHIBIT “B” TO REPORT OF HEARING OFFICER 

NV HOMESTEAD APARTMENTS LP 

 

 

PROOF OF PUBLICATION 

 

 

 

 

 

[FOLLOWS] 

 



 

 
 

A‐5 
4817-4077-4201.2 

EXHIBIT “C” TO REPORT OF HEARING OFFICER 

NV HOMESTEAD APARTMENTS LP 

 

 

 

MINUTES OF COUNCIL MEETING INCLUDING 

 PUBLIC HEARING ON FILE WITH CITY CLERK  

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 1 
4817-4077-4201.2 

EXHIBIT “B” TO RESOLUTION 

 

AMENDMENT NO. 72 

OF THE ENABLING AGREEMENT 

 

[Follows] 

 

AMENDMENT NO. 72 TO INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 

 

This AMENDMENT NO. 72 TO INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT (this “Amendment No. 

72”) is made and entered into as of the __th day of December, 2016, by and among the CITY OF 

GULF BREEZE, FLORIDA, a municipal corporation of the State of Florida (“Gulf Breeze”) and 

the  TOWN  OF  CENTURY,  FLORIDA,  a  municipal  corporation  of  the  State  of  Florida 

(“Century”).  Gulf Breeze and Century may collectively be referred to herein as the “Parties.” 

 

WITNESSETH: 

 

WHEREAS,  pursuant  to  an  Interlocal  Agreement  dated  as  of  August  2,  1999,  as 

amended by Amendments No. 1 through No. 71 (collectively, the “Enabling Agreement”), the 

Parties  hereto  have  heretofore  provided  for  the  creation  of  the  Capital  Trust  Agency  (the 

“Agency”), to enable public, private and not‐for‐profit organizations to obtain public assistance 

in  financing certain projects or programs  that benefit, enhance and/or serve a public purpose; 

and  

 

  WHEREAS, NV Homestead Apartments LP, a Florida  limited partnership, and/or one or 

more of its affiliates (as applicable, the “Borrower”), has represented to the Agency that, acting for 

itself  or  through  its  affiliates,  it  is  engaged  in,  among other  things,  the  acquiring,  constructing, 

renovating and equipping of multifamily rental housing facilities for persons of low or moderate 

income; and 

 

  WHEREAS, on August 23, 2016, the Agency approved a request by the Borrower that the 

Agency issue its revenue bonds in a principal amount not to exceed $10,500,000 (the exact amount 

to be determined by  the appropriate official of  the Agency, as being  the amount  required  to 

fund  the financing herein authorized),  in one or more series from time to time (collectively, the 

“Bonds”) and loan the net proceeds thereof to the Borrower, for the purpose, among other things, 

of  financing  or  refinancing,  including  through  reimbursement,  the  acquisition,  construction, 

renovation and equipping of a multifamily rental housing facility for persons of low or moderate 

income,  as  described  on  Schedule  “I”  attached  hereto,  which,  by  this  reference  thereto,  is 

incorporated herein (the “Project”); and 

 

WHEREAS, the Agency will issue its Bonds on a case‐by‐case basis after review by the 

Agency,  to  provide  financing  and  refinancing  from  time  to  time  for  individual  projects  or 

groups of projects, or eligible financing programs, based upon the credit pledged therefor from 



 

 

 2 
4817-4077-4201.2 

one or more of  the projects,  the Borrower, a sponsor, a credit enhancement  facility,  if any, or 

from the revenues of any such programs; and  

 

WHEREAS, Section 7 of the Enabling Agreement requires that as a condition precedent 

to the Agency issuing the Bonds, the Agency must obtain the prior written approval, evidenced 

by resolution, from the governing bodies of Century and Gulf Breeze approving such issuance 

and  approving  an  amendment  to  the  Enabling  Agreement  specifically  authorizing  such 

issuance.   Such approval evidenced by appropriate resolutions has been obtained, authorizing 

the execution and delivery of this Amendment No. 72 to the Enabling Agreement with respect 

to the financing herein described; and 

 

WHEREAS,  the  Parties  desire  to  amend  the  Enabling  Agreement  to  permit  and 

authorize the Agency to issue the Bonds herein described and loan the proceeds to the Borrower 

in order to provide financing, including through reimbursement, for the Project; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties hereby agree as follows: 

 

SECTION 1.  AMENDMENT OF ENABLING AGREEMENT APPROVED. 

 

This Amendment No. 72 is entered into pursuant to Section 7 of the Enabling Agreement 

for the purpose of authorizing the Agency to issue the Bonds and to finance projects of the type 

and character of the Project. 

 

SECTION 2.  BONDS, PROGRAM, PLAN OF FINANCE APPROVED. 

 

The Parties do hereby approve and authorize the Bonds, and the issuance of Bonds from 

time  to  time,  in  one  or  more  series,  in  an  aggregate  principal  amount  of  not  to  exceed 

$10,500,000 (the exact amount to be determined by an appropriate official of the Agency to be 

sufficient  to  enable  the  financing  or  refinancing,  including  through  reimbursement,  of  the 

Project).  Each installment or issue of such Bonds shall be designated by series, in such manner 

as the Agency shall determine, so as to separately identify each such installment or issue.  The 

Agency and its officers, employees, agents and attorneys are hereby authorized to enter into, on 

behalf of the Agency, from time to time,  interlocal agreements, cash management agreements, 

interest rate swap or hedge transactions, investment agreements, repurchase agreements, bond 

credit  or  insurance  agreements,  escrow  agreements,  reimbursement  agreements,  security 

documents and other agreements, approvals or instruments deemed necessary or convenient to 

effect  or  implement  the  financing  or  refinancing,  including  through  reimbursement,  of  the 

Project through the issuance of the Bonds, and the purposes and programs for which the Bonds 

are  to  be  issued  and  to  conform  the  purposes  stated  in  the Articles  of  Incorporation  of  the 

Agency  to  authorizations  herein  contained.    No  obligation  of  the  Agency  under  any  such 

agreement or  instrument shall constitute an obligation of Century or Gulf Breeze.   The Bonds 

shall be limited and special obligations of the Agency, payable from the revenues or receipts of 

the programs or projects, payments by the Borrower, a sponsor, or other sources relating to the 



 

 

 3 
4817-4077-4201.2 

purpose  for which  they are  issued, all  in  the  indentures  for  the Bonds.   The Bonds  shall not 

constitute  a  pledge  of  the  faith  and  credit  or  taxing  power  of  or  constitute  an  obligation  of 

Century or of Gulf Breeze.  

 

SECTION 3.  ADMINISTRATIVE FEES AND EXPENSES FOR CENTURY. 

 

Upon the issuance of each series or installment of Bonds, Century shall be paid by either 

the Agency or Gulf Breeze, solely from amounts received from the Borrower, the sum specified 

on Schedule II attached hereto, which, by this reference thereto, is incorporated herein. 

   



 

 

 4 
4817-4077-4201.2 

SECTION 4.  ENABLING AGREEMENT CONTINUED.   

 

The  Enabling  Agreement,  as  amended  hereby,  is  hereby  ratified,  confirmed  and 

approved and shall otherwise continue in full force and effect.  Nothing in this Amendment No. 

72  shall  be  deemed  to  adversely  affect  the  authorizations  in  the  Enabling  Agreement  as  it 

existed prior to the effective date of this Amendment No. 72, or to adversely affect the interests 

of the holders of any Bonds issued or to be issued pursuant to such authorizations.   Except as 

and  only  to  the  extent  specifically  amended  hereby,  such  Enabling  Agreement  is  hereby 

incorporated by reference. 

 

SECTION 5.  INDEMNITY. 

 

To the extent permitted by law, the Agency and Gulf Breeze shall indemnify and defend 

Century and hold Century harmless against any and all claims, losses, liabilities or damages to 

property  or  any  injury  or  death  of  any  person  or  persons  occurring  in  connection with  the 

issuance of the Bonds pursuant hereto, or in connection with the acquisition or operation of any 

project, or for any liability any way growing out of or resulting from the Enabling Agreement, 

as  amended,  this  Amendment  No.  72,  the  financing  agreements  and/or  bond  indentures 

executed in connection with the Bonds, including, without limitation, all costs and expenses of 

Century,  including reasonable attorney’s  fees,  incurred  in  the performance of any activities of 

Century  in connection with the foregoing or the enforcement of any agreement of the Agency 

herein  contained.   Any  such obligation of Gulf Breeze or  the Agency  shall be payable  solely 

from the amounts available to them for such purposes under the Bond financing or refinancing 

or any other plan of  finance heretofore or hereafter undertaken by  the Agency, and shall not 

constitute a general obligation or a pledge of the faith and credit of Gulf Breeze or the Agency, 

or an obligation to pay the same from any sources other than such amounts available to them 

for such purposes under the Bond financing.  

 

SECTION 6.  SEVERABILITY OF INVALID PROVISIONS. 

 

If any one or more of the covenants, agreements or provisions herein contained shall be 

held contrary to any express provisions of law or contrary to the policy of express law, though 

not expressly prohibited, or against public policy, or shall  for any reason whatsoever be held 

invalid,  then  such  covenants,  agreements  or  provisions  shall  be  null  and  void  and  shall  be 

deemed severable from the remaining covenants, agreements or provisions and shall in no way 

affect the validity of any of the other provisions hereto. 

 

  SECTION 7.  COUNTERPARTS. 

 

This  Amendment  may  be  simultaneously  executed  in  several  counterparts,  each  of 

which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the same instrument. 

 

 



 

 

 5 
4817-4077-4201.2 

 

 

SECTION 8.  EFFECTIVE DATE; AMENDMENTS. 

 

This  Amendment  shall  take  effect  when  duly  executed  by  the  Parties  and  filed  in 

accordance with law.  This Amendment may be amended only by written instrument signed by 

authorized  representatives  of Century  and  of Gulf  Breeze;  provided,  however,  that  no  such 

amendment which would  adversely  affect  the  rights  of  the  holders  or  owners  of  any  then 

outstanding Bonds of the Agency or of any other member shall take effect until such time as all 

necessary  consents or approvals with  respect  to  such Bonds  shall have been obtained,  in  the 

case of the rights of bondholders, or the consents and approvals of the affected members, in the 

case of the rights of members. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank]



 

 

S‐1 
4817-4077-4201.2 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF,  the Parties  have  caused  this Amendment No.  72  to  the Enabling 

Agreement to be executed by their duly authorized officers as of the date first above written. 

 

 

  CITY OF GULF BREEZE, FLORIDA 

[SEAL] 

 

 

  By: _________________________________________ 

Matt E. Dannheisser, Mayor  

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

By: __________________________________ 

       Stephanie D. Lucas, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

[Signature Page to Amendment No. 72 to Interlocal Agreement] 

   



 

 

S‐2 
4817-4077-4201.2 

  TOWN OF CENTURY, FLORIDA 

 

[SEAL] 

 

  By: ________________________________ 

         Freddie W. McCall, Sr., Mayor  

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

By: ____________________________________ 

       Leslie Gonzalez, Town Clerk 

 

 

 

 

[Signature Page to Amendment No. 72 to Interlocal Agreement] 

 

 

 



 

 

SCHEDULE I 
4817-4077-4201.2 

 

SCHEDULE I 

 

Project Description 

 

The  Project  consists  of  the  acquisition,  construction,  renovation  and  equipping  of  an 

approximately  92‐unit multifamily  rental  housing  facility  for  persons  of  low  and moderate 

income known as Homestead Apartments  located at 250 SW 14th Avenue, Homestead, Florida 

33030. 

 

 



 

B‐1 
4817-4077-4201.2 

SCHEDULE II 

 

Payment to Century 

 

$350.00 per million principal amount of each  issue, upon  issuance  thereof, but not  less 

than $2,500.00. 

 



 

SCHEDULE I 
4817-4077-4201.2 

SCHEDULE “I” TO RESOLUTION 

 

The  Project  consists  of  the  acquisition,  construction,  renovation  and  equipping  of  an 

approximately  92‐unit multifamily  rental  housing  facility  for  persons  of  low  and moderate 

income known as Homestead Apartments  located at 250 SW 14th Avenue, Homestead, Florida 

33030. 

 

 





 

1 

RESOLUTION 36‐16 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GULF BREEZE, 

FLORIDA, APPROVING A PLAN OF FINANCE IN ORDER TO REFINANCE 

A CERTAIN OUTSTANDING OBLIGATION HEREIN DESCRIBED, WHICH 

OBLIGATION  FINANCED  A  PORTION  OF  THE  COSTS  OF  A  CERTAIN 

FACILITY  DESCRIBED  HEREIN  AND  LOCATED  IN  THE  STATE  OF 

FLORIDA  AND  PAYING  CERTAIN  BOND  ISSUANCE  COSTS  (AS 

HEREINAFTER  DEFINED);  APPROVING  THE  ISSUANCE  OF  NOT 

EXCEEDING  $11,000,000  CAPITAL  TRUST  AGENCY  REVENUE  BONDS 

FOR THE PURPOSE OF FINANCING A LOAN PROGRAM TO ASSIST  IN 

REFINANCING  SUCH  FACILITY;  APPROVING  A  HEREIN  DESCRIBED 

AMENDMENT TO INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT CREATING THE CAPITAL 

TRUST  AGENCY;  PROVIDING  FOR  REPEAL  OF  CONFLICTING 

PROVISIONS; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

  WHEREAS, the City Council (the “City Council”) of Gulf Breeze, Florida (the “City”), a 

municipal corporation of  the State of Florida  (the “State”), has heretofore adopted Resolution 

No. 14‐99 dated as of  July 19, 1999  (the “Original Resolution”), and entered  into an  Interlocal 

Agreement between the City and the Town of Century, Florida, dated as of August 2, 1999, as 

amended  by  Amendment  No.  1  through  No.  72  (collectively,  the  “Enabling  Agreement”), 

approving  the  creation of  the Capital Trust Agency  (the  “Agency”),  a  legal entity and public 

agency  of  the  State,  organized  and  existing  under  the  provisions  of  Chapter  163,  Part  I,  and 

Chapter 159, Part  II, Florida Statutes, Ordinance No. 05‐97 duly enacted by  the City Council, as 

amended, and  its Articles of  Incorporation, as amended and other applicable provisions of  law 

(collectively the “Act”), to enable public, private and not‐for‐profit organizations to obtain public 

assistance  in  financing  and  refinancing,  including  through  reimbursement,  certain  beneficial 

projects or programs that benefit, enhance and/or serve a public purpose; and 

 

  WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act and  in accordance with the provisions of the Original 

Resolution, the Agency did on October 5, 2016, take official action by adopting its preliminary 

resolution  (the  “Agency Resolution”)  indicating  its  intent  to  authorize  the  refinancing  of  the 

hereinafter  described  Facility,  and  the  issuance  from  time  to  time  of  revenue  bonds  (the 

“Bonds”)  by  the  Agency  for  a  loan  program  for  the  purposes,  among  other  things,  of  (i) 

refinancing  a  portion  of  the  outstanding  principal  amount  of  a  conventional  taxable  loan  (the 

“Prior Obligation”), which  Prior Obligation  financed  a  portion  of  the  cost  of  a  120‐bed  skilled 

nursing facility located at 4201 Nolte Road, St. Cloud, Osceola County, Florida 34772, and known 

as Osceola Health Care & Rehab Center (the “Facility”), and (ii) financing the costs associated with 

the issuance of the Bonds (collectively, the “Project”); and 

 

  WHEREAS, the City has been advised that the Agency desires to issue the Bonds in an 

aggregate principal amount of not exceeding $11,000,000 (the exact amount to be determined by 

the  appropriate  official  of  the Agency,  as  being  the  amount  required  to  fund  the  financing 



 

2 

herein authorized), to finance the Project on behalf of Osceola Health Care, Ltd., a Florida limited 

partnership,  or  one  or more  of  its  affiliates, whose  principal  place  of  business  is  17401  S.E. 

County Highway  475,  Summerfield,  Florida  34491  (as  applicable,  the  “Borrower”)  to  fund  a 

program herein described (the “Plan of Finance”), such Facility to be owned by the Borrower and 

leased to and operated by Osceola Nursing & Rehabilitation, Inc., a corporation of the State; and 

 

WHEREAS, the proposed Facility  is appropriate to the needs and circumstances of the 

community in which it is located and serves a public purpose by (i) providing and preserving 

gainful employment, (ii) promoting commerce within the State, (iii) serving a public purpose by 

providing skilled nursing and rehabilitation care, and  (iv) advancing  the economic prosperity 

and the general welfare of the State and its people; and 

 

WHEREAS, in order to advance and further the public purposes set forth in the Act, it is 

necessary and in the public interest to facilitate the refinancing of the Prior Obligation without 

regard  to  the  boundaries  between  counties, municipalities,  special  districts,  and  other  local 

governmental bodies or agencies in order to more effectively and efficiently serve the interests 

of the greatest number of people in the widest area practicable; and 

 

  WHEREAS,  the City Council desires  to approve  the Bonds and  the  issuance and  sale 

thereof  pursuant  to  the  Plan  of  Finance,  to  express  its  approval  of  the  action  taken  by  the 

Agency and  its officials pursuant  to  the Agency Resolution, and  to grant all other approvals 

required by  the Enabling Agreement, as amended and  the Original Resolution  in  connection 

with the issuance and sale of the Bonds;  

 

  NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

GULF BREEZE, FLORIDA: 

 

SECTION 1.  BONDS AND PLAN OF FINANCE APPROVED.      

 

For purposes of the Act, the City hereby approves the Plan of Finance described herein, 

and the issuance of the Bonds herein described.  The Agency and its officers, employees, agents 

and attorneys are hereby authorized from time to time to take all action, to execute and deliver 

such authorizations, approvals, certificates and documents, and  to enter  into, on behalf of  the 

Agency,  such  interlocal  agreements,  interest  rate  swap  or  hedge  transactions,  investment 

agreements,  repurchase  agreements,  bond  credit  or  insurance  agreements,  reimbursement 

agreements, and other agreements, approvals or  instruments deemed necessary or convenient 

to  effect,  implement, maintain and  continue  the Plan of Finance,  the  refinancing of  the Prior 

Obligation through the issuance from time to time of the Bonds and the purposes for which the 

Bonds are to be issued, including, without limitation, the Amendment (hereinafter defined) and 

the Agency Resolution.  No obligation of the Agency under any such agreement shall constitute 

an obligation of the City except to the extent the same may be expressly approved by the City.  

The Bonds  shall be  limited  and  special  obligations  of  the Agency,  and  shall not  constitute  a 

pledge of the faith and credit or taxing power of or constitute an obligation of the City.  



 

3 

 

  SECTION 2.  AMENDMENT TO THE ENABLING AGREEMENT APPROVED.   

 

Pursuant  to  the  Enabling  Agreement,  there  is  hereby  approved  the  execution  and 

delivery of Amendment No.  73  to  the Enabling Agreement  (the  “Amendment”)  to  effect  the 

approvals set forth in Section 1 and Section 2 hereof.  Such Amendment shall be in substantially 

the form attached hereto as Exhibit “B,” and the Mayor is authorized to execute and deliver the 

same on behalf of the City Council, with such changes not inconsistent herewith as the Mayor 

shall approve, his execution thereof to conclusively establish such approval. 

 

  SECTION 3.  REPEALING CLAUSE.      

 

All  resolutions  or  parts  thereof  of  the  City  in  conflict  with  the  provisions  herein 

contained are, to the extent of such conflict, hereby superseded and repealed. 

 

 

 

 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 

 

 

 

 

   



 

4 

  SECTION 4.  EFFECTIVE DATE.      

 

This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption this 5th day of December, 

2016. 

 

 

 

              GULF BREEZE, FLORIDA 

              CITY COUNCIL 

 

 

 

(SEAL)  By:  _________________________________ 

Matt E. Dannheisser, Mayor 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

By:  __________________________________ 

Stephanie D. Lucas, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 5 

EXHIBIT “A” TO RESOLUTION 

AMENDMENT NO. 73 

OF THE ENABLING AGREEMENT 

 

AMENDMENT NO. 73 TO INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 

 

This AMENDMENT NO. 73 TO INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT (this “Amendment No. 73”) is 

made  and  entered  into  as  of  the  19th  day  of December,  2016,  by  and  among  the  CITY OF GULF 

BREEZE, FLORIDA, a municipal corporation of  the State of Florida  (“Gulf Breeze”) and  the TOWN 

OF CENTURY, FLORIDA, a municipal corporation of  the State of Florida  (“Century”).   Gulf Breeze 

and Century may collectively be referred to herein as the “Parties.” 

 

WITNESSETH: 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant  to an  Interlocal Agreement dated as of August 2, 1999, as amended by 

Amendments No. 1  through No. 72  (collectively,  the “Enabling Agreement”),  the Parties hereto have 

heretofore  provided  for  the  creation  of  the Capital  Trust Agency  (the  “Agency”),  to  enable  public, 

private  and  not‐for‐profit  organizations  to  obtain  public  assistance  in  financing  certain  projects  or 

programs that benefit, enhance and/or serve a public purpose; and  

 

  WHEREAS, Osceola Health Care, Ltd., a Florida limited partnership, or one or more of its affiliates 

(as  applicable,  the  “Borrower”),  has  represented  to  the  Agency  that,  acting  for  itself  or  through  its 

affiliates, it is engaged in, among other things, the ownership of skilled nursing facilities; and 

 

  WHEREAS, on October 5, 2016, the Agency approved a request by the Borrower that the Agency 

issue  its  revenue  bonds  in  a  principal  amount  not  to  exceed  $11,000,000  (the  exact  amount  to  be 

determined  by  the  appropriate  official  of  the  Agency,  as  being  the  amount  required  to  fund  the 

refinancing herein authorized),  in one or more series  from  time  to  time  (collectively,  the “Bonds”) and 

loan the net proceeds thereof to the Borrower, for the purposes, among other things, of (i) refinancing a 

portion of the outstanding principal amount of a conventional taxable loan (the “Prior Obligation”), which 

Prior Obligation financed a portion of the cost of a 120‐bed skilled nursing facility  located at 4201 Nolte 

Road, St. Cloud, Osceola County, Florida 34772, and known as Osceola Health Care & Rehab Center (the 

“Facility”), and (ii) financing the costs associated with the issuance of the Bonds; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Agency will issue its Bonds on a case‐by‐case basis after review by the Agency, 

to provide financing and refinancing from time to time for individual projects or groups of projects, or 

eligible financing programs, based upon the credit pledged therefor from one or more of the projects, 

the  Borrower,  a  sponsor,  a  credit  enhancement  facility,  if  any,  or  from  the  revenues  of  any  such 

programs; and  

 

WHEREAS, Section 7 of the Enabling Agreement requires that as a condition precedent to the 

Agency issuing the Bonds, the Agency must obtain the prior written approval, evidenced by resolution, 

from  the governing bodies  of Century  and Gulf Breeze  approving  such  issuance  and  approving  an 



 

 

 6 

amendment  to  the  Enabling  Agreement  specifically  authorizing  such  issuance.    Such  approval 

evidenced by appropriate resolutions has been obtained, authorizing the execution and delivery of this 

Amendment No. 73 to the Enabling Agreement with respect to the refinancing herein described; and 

 

WHEREAS,  the Parties desire  to amend  the Enabling Agreement  to permit and authorize  the 

Agency to issue the Bonds herein described and loan the proceeds to the Borrower in order to provide 

refinancing for the Facility; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties hereby agree as follows: 

 

SECTION 1.  AMENDMENT OF ENABLING AGREEMENT APPROVED. 

 

This Amendment No. 73 is entered into pursuant to Section 7 of the Enabling Agreement for the 

purpose of authorizing the Agency to issue the Bonds and to refinance the Prior Obligation. 

 

SECTION 2.  BONDS, PROGRAM, PLAN OF FINANCE APPROVED. 

 

The Parties do hereby approve and authorize the Bonds, and the issuance of Bonds from time to 

time,  in one or more series,  in an aggregate principal amount of not  to exceed $11,000,000  (the exact 

amount  to  be  determined  by  an  appropriate  official  of  the  Agency  to  be  sufficient  to  enable  the 

refinancing of  the Prior Obligation).   Each  installment or  issue of such Bonds shall be designated by 

series, in such manner as the Agency shall determine, so as to separately identify each such installment 

or issue.  The Agency and its officers, employees, agents and attorneys are hereby authorized to enter 

into, on behalf of the Agency, from time to time, interlocal agreements, cash management agreements, 

interest rate swap or hedge  transactions,  investment agreements, repurchase agreements, bond credit 

or  insurance  agreements,  escrow  agreements,  reimbursement  agreements,  security  documents  and 

other agreements, approvals or instruments deemed necessary or convenient to effect or implement the 

refinancing of the Prior Obligation through the issuance of the Bonds, and the purposes and programs 

for  which  the  Bonds  are  to  be  issued  and  to  conform  the  purposes  stated  in  the  Articles  of 

Incorporation of  the Agency  to authorizations herein contained.   No obligation of  the Agency under 

any such agreement or instrument shall constitute an obligation of Century or Gulf Breeze.  The Bonds 

shall be  limited and  special obligations of  the Agency, payable  from  the  revenues or  receipts of  the 

programs or projects, payments by the Borrower, a sponsor, or other sources relating to the purpose for 

which they are issued, all in the indentures for the Bonds.  The Bonds shall not constitute a pledge of 

the faith and credit or taxing power of or constitute an obligation of Century or of Gulf Breeze.  

 

SECTION 3.  ADMINISTRATIVE FEES AND EXPENSES FOR CENTURY. 

 

Upon  the  issuance of each series or  installment of Bonds, Century shall be paid by either  the 

Agency  or  Gulf  Breeze,  solely  from  amounts  received  from  the  Borrower,  the  sum  specified  on 

Schedule I attached hereto, which, by this reference thereto, is incorporated herein. 

 

SECTION 4.  ENABLING AGREEMENT CONTINUED.   



 

 

 7 

 

The Enabling Agreement, as amended hereby, is hereby ratified, confirmed and approved and 

shall otherwise continue in full force and effect.  Nothing in this Amendment No. 73 shall be deemed to 

adversely affect the authorizations in the Enabling Agreement as it existed prior to the effective date of 

this Amendment No. 73, or to adversely affect the interests of the holders of any Bonds issued or to be 

issued pursuant to such authorizations.  Except as and only to the extent specifically amended hereby, 

such Enabling Agreement is hereby incorporated by reference. 

 

SECTION 5.  INDEMNITY. 

 

To  the  extent  permitted  by  law,  the  Agency  and  Gulf  Breeze  shall  indemnify  and  defend 

Century  and  hold  Century  harmless  against  any  and  all  claims,  losses,  liabilities  or  damages  to 

property or any injury or death of any person or persons occurring in connection with the issuance of 

the Bonds pursuant hereto, or in connection with the acquisition or operation of any project, or for any 

liability  any  way  growing  out  of  or  resulting  from  the  Enabling  Agreement,  as  amended,  this 

Amendment No. 73, the financing agreements and/or bond indentures executed in connection with the 

Bonds, including, without limitation, all costs and expenses of Century, including reasonable attorney’s 

fees,  incurred  in the performance of any activities of Century  in connection with the foregoing or the 

enforcement of any agreement of the Agency herein contained.  Any such obligation of Gulf Breeze or 

the Agency shall be payable solely  from  the amounts available  to  them  for such purposes under  the 

Bond  financing or any other plan of  finance heretofore or hereafter undertaken by  the Agency, and 

shall not constitute a general obligation or a pledge of the faith and credit of Gulf Breeze or the Agency, 

or an obligation to pay the same from any sources other than such amounts available to them for such 

purposes under the Bond financing.  

 

SECTION 6.  SEVERABILITY OF INVALID PROVISIONS. 

 

If any one or more of  the covenants, agreements or provisions herein contained shall be held 

contrary to any express provisions of law or contrary to the policy of express law, though not expressly 

prohibited,  or  against  public  policy,  or  shall  for  any  reason whatsoever  be  held  invalid,  then  such 

covenants, agreements or provisions  shall be null and void and  shall be deemed  severable  from  the 

remaining  covenants, agreements or provisions and  shall  in no way affect  the validity of any of  the 

other provisions hereto. 

 

  SECTION 7.  COUNTERPARTS. 

 

This Amendment may be simultaneously executed in several counterparts, each of which shall 

be an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the same instrument. 

 

SECTION 8.  EFFECTIVE DATE; AMENDMENTS. 

 

This Amendment shall  take effect when duly executed by  the Parties and  filed  in accordance 

with  law.    This  Amendment may  be  amended  only  by  written  instrument  signed  by  authorized 



 

 

 8 

representatives of Century  and of Gulf Breeze; provided, however,  that no  such  amendment which 

would  adversely  affect  the  rights  of  the  holders  or  owners  of  any  then  outstanding  Bonds  of  the 

Agency or of any other member shall take effect until such time as all necessary consents or approvals 

with respect  to such Bonds shall have been obtained,  in  the case of  the rights of bondholders, or  the 

consents and approvals of the affected members, in the case of the rights of members. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank] 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

 



 

A‐1 
 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF,  the  Parties  have  caused  this  Amendment  No.  73  to  the 

Enabling Agreement to be executed by their duly authorized officers as of the date first above 

written. 

 

 

  CITY OF GULF BREEZE, FLORIDA 

[SEAL] 

 

 

  By: _________________________________________ 

Matt E. Dannheisser, Mayor  

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

By: __________________________________ 

       Stephanie D. Lucas, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

[Signature Page to Amendment No. 73 to Interlocal Agreement] 

   



 

A‐2 
 

 

 

  TOWN OF CENTURY, FLORIDA 

 

[SEAL] 

 

  By: ________________________________ 

         Freddie W. McCall, Sr., Mayor  

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

By: ____________________________________ 

       Leslie Howington, Town Clerk 

 

 

 

 

[Signature Page to Amendment No. 73 to Interlocal Agreement] 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   



 

A‐3 
 

SCHEDULE I 

 

Payment to Century 

 

$350.00 per million principal amount of each  issue, upon  issuance  thereof, but not  less 

than $2,500.00. 







1 
4811-1346-9756.1 

RESOLUTION 37‐16 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GULF BREEZE, 

FLORIDA, APPROVING A PLAN OF  FINANCE  IN ORDER TO  FINANCE 

OR REFINANCE, INCLUDING THROUGH REIMBURSEMENT THE COSTS 

OF  THE  ACQUISITION,  CONSTRUCTION,  DEVELOPMENT, 

INSTALLATION AND EQUIPPING OF THE HEREIN DESCRIBED SENIOR 

LIVING FACILITY LOCATED  IN THE STATE OF FLORIDA; APPROVING 

THE  ISSUANCE  OF  NOT  EXCEEDING  $45,000,000  CAPITAL  TRUST 

AGENCY REVENUE BONDS FOR THE PURPOSE OF FINANCING A LOAN 

PROGRAM TO ASSIST IN FINANCING SUCH SENIOR LIVING FACILITY; 

APPROVAL OF A HEREIN DESCRIBED AMENDMENT TO  INTERLOCAL 

AGREEMENT  CREATING  THE  CAPITAL  TRUST AGENCY;  PROVIDING 

FOR  REPEAL  OF  CONFLICTING  PROVISIONS;  AND  PROVIDING  AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

  WHEREAS, the City Council (the “City Council”) of Gulf Breeze, Florida (the “City”), a 

municipal corporation of  the State of Florida  (the “State”), has heretofore adopted Resolution 

No. 14‐99 dated as of  July 19, 1999  (the “Original Resolution”), and entered  into an  Interlocal 

Agreement between the City and the Town of Century, Florida, dated as of August 2, 1999, as 

amended  by  Amendment  No.  1  through  No.  73  (collectively,  the  “Enabling  Agreement”), 

approving  the  creation of  the Capital Trust Agency  (the  “Agency”),  a  legal entity and public 

agency  of  the  State,  organized  and  existing  under  the  provisions  of  Chapter  163,  Part  I,  and 

Chapter 159, Part  II, Florida Statutes, Ordinance No. 05‐97 duly enacted by  the City Council, as 

amended, and  its Articles of  Incorporation, as amended and other applicable provisions of  law 

(collectively the “Act”), to enable public, private and not‐for‐profit organizations to obtain public 

assistance  in  financing  and  refinancing,  including  through  reimbursement,  certain  beneficial 

projects or programs that benefit, enhance and/or serve a public purpose; and 

 

  WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act and  in accordance with the provisions of the Original 

Resolution, the Agency did on October 5, 2016, take official action by adopting its preliminary 

resolution (the “Agency Resolution”) indicating its intent to authorize the financing, including 

through reimbursement, of the hereinafter described project, and the issuance from time to time 

of revenue bonds (the “Bonds”) by the Agency for a loan program for the purposes, among other 

things, of financing or refinancing, including through reimbursement, the acquisition, construction, 

development,  installation  and  equipping  of  a  senior  living  facility,  and  the  acquisition  and 

installation of related facilities, fixtures, furnishings and equipment, as described on Schedule “I” 

attached hereto, which, by this reference thereto, is incorporated herein, to provide housing for the 

elderly (collectively, the “Senior Living Facility”); and 

 

  WHEREAS, the City has been advised that the Agency desires to issue the Bonds in an 

aggregate principal amount of not exceeding $45,000,000 (the exact amount to be determined by 

the  appropriate  official  of  the Agency,  as  being  the  amount  required  to  fund  the  financing 



2 
4811-1346-9756.1 

herein authorized), to finance the Senior Living Facility on behalf of Senior Care Living of Palm 

Bay, LLC, a Florida limited liability company, and/or one or more of its affiliates, as described 

on  the  attached  Schedule  “I,” whose principal place  of  business  is  8380 Bay Pines Blvd.,  3rd 

Floor, St. Petersburg, Florida  33709  (as  applicable,  the  “Borrower”)  to  fund a program herein 

described (the “Plan of Finance”), such Senior Living Facility to be managed  initially by Validus 

Senior  Living  REIT  Investment  Company,  LLC,  a  Florida  limited  liability  company  (the 

“Manager”); and 

 

WHEREAS,  the  proposed  Senior  Living  Facility  is  appropriate  to  the  needs  and 

circumstances of the community in which it will be located and will serve a public purpose by 

(i)  providing  gainful  employment  and  making  a  significant  contribution  to  the  economic 

growth of the local community, (ii) promoting commerce within the State, (iii) serving a public 

purpose  by  providing  safe,  decent  and  accessible  housing  facilities  for  the  elderly,  and  (iv) 

advancing the economic prosperity and the general welfare of the State and its people; and 

 

WHEREAS, in order to advance and further the public purposes set forth in the Act, it is 

necessary and in the public interest to facilitate the financing of the Senior Living Facility and to 

facilitate and encourage  the planning and development of such Senior Living Facility without 

regard  to  the  boundaries  between  counties, municipalities,  special  districts,  and  other  local 

governmental bodies or agencies in order to more effectively and efficiently serve the interests 

of the greatest number of people in the widest area practicable; and 

 

  WHEREAS,  Section  147(f)  of  the  Internal  Revenue  Code  of  1986,  as  amended  (the 

“Code”),  requires  public  approval  of  certain  revenue  bonds  by  an  applicable  elected 

representative or governmental unit on behalf of which such bonds are to be issued, following a 

public hearing; and 

 

  WHEREAS, (i) notice of such public hearing was given in the form required by the Code 

by publication at least fourteen (14) days prior to such public hearing in the Gulf Breeze News on 

October 27, 2016, and (ii) the Bonds and the Plan of Finance have been submitted to such public 

hearing  held  on  behalf  of  the  City  Council  of  the  City  of  Gulf  Breeze,  Florida  (the  “City 

Council”) on November 14, 2016; and 

 

  WHEREAS,  the City Manager has conducted  the public hearing on behalf of  the City 

Council and provided reasonable opportunity for all interested persons to express their views, 

both  orally  and  in writing  and  diligently  and  conscientiously  considered  all  comments  and 

concerns expressed by such individuals, if any; and  

 

  WHEREAS,  the City Council desires  to approve  the Bonds and  the  issuance and  sale 

thereof pursuant to the Plan of Finance and to grant all approvals required or contemplated by 

Section 147(f) of  the Code,  to  express  its approval of  the action  taken by  the Agency and  its 

officials pursuant  to  the Agency Resolution, and  to grant all other approvals  required by  the 



3 
4811-1346-9756.1 

Enabling Agreement, as amended and the Original Resolution in connection with the issuance 

and sale of the Bonds;  

 

  NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

GULF BREEZE, FLORIDA: 

 

  SECTION 1.  PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE AND REPORT APPROVED.      

 

The City Council  hereby  approves  the  form  of  and  the manner  of publication  of  the 

Notice of Public Hearing (the ʺNoticeʺ) published on October 27, 2016, in the Gulf Breeze News, a 

newspaper  of  general  circulation  in  the  jurisdiction  of  the  City.    The  City  Council  hereby 

approves  the report of  the public hearing conducted by  the City Manager, a copy of which  is 

attached as Exhibit “A” hereto.  Such Notice and other means and methods utilized by the City 

to  give  notice  of  purpose,  time  and  date  of  the  public  hearing  provided  reasonable  notice 

sufficient to inform residents of the City of the proposed Bonds.   

 

SECTION 2.  BONDS AND PLAN OF FINANCE APPROVED.      

 

For purposes of the Act, the City hereby approves the Plan of Finance described herein, 

and the issuance of the Bonds described in the Notice.  The Agency and its officers, employees, 

agents and attorneys are hereby authorized from time to time to take all action, to execute and 

deliver such authorizations, approvals, certificates and documents, and to enter into, on behalf 

of the Agency, such interlocal agreements, interest rate swap or hedge transactions, investment 

agreements,  repurchase  agreements,  bond  credit  or  insurance  agreements,  reimbursement 

agreements, and other agreements, approvals or  instruments deemed necessary or convenient 

to  effect,  implement,  maintain  and  continue  the  Plan  of  Finance,  the  financing,  including 

through reimbursement, of the Senior Living Facility through the issuance from time to time of 

the Bonds and the purposes for which the Bonds are to be issued, including, without limitation, 

the Amendment (hereinafter defined) and the Agency Resolution.  No obligation of the Agency 

under  any  such  agreement  shall  constitute  an obligation of  the City  except  to  the  extent  the 

same  may  be  expressly  approved  by  the  City.    The  Bonds  shall  be  limited  and  special 

obligations of  the Agency, and  shall not  constitute a pledge of  the  faith and  credit or  taxing 

power of or constitute an obligation of the City.  

 

  SECTION 3.  AMENDMENT TO THE ENABLING AGREEMENT APPROVED.   

 

Pursuant  to  the  Enabling  Agreement,  there  is  hereby  approved  the  execution  and 

delivery of Amendment No.  74  to  the Enabling Agreement  (the  “Amendment”)  to  effect  the 

approvals set forth in Section 1 and Section 2 hereof.  Such Amendment shall be in substantially 

the form attached hereto as Exhibit “B,” and the Mayor is authorized to execute and deliver the 

same on behalf of the City Council, with such changes not inconsistent herewith as the Mayor 

shall approve, his execution thereof to conclusively establish such approval. 

 



4 
4811-1346-9756.1 

  SECTION 4.  TEFRA APPROVAL.   

 

After diligent  and  conscientious  consideration  of  the  views  expressed  by  the persons 

appearing at the public hearing, the City Council hereby approves the Agency’s Plan of Finance 

which includes (i) the issuance by the Agency of not exceeding $45,000,000 aggregate principal 

amount of revenue bonds for all purposes of the Enabling Agreement, as amended, and for all 

purposes of the Original Resolution and (ii) the issuance by the Agency of either taxable or tax‐

exempt, or both, bonds in an amount not exceeding $45,000,000 for all purposes under Section 

147(f) of the Code. 

 

  SECTION 5.  REPEALING CLAUSE.      

 

All  resolutions  or  parts  thereof  of  the  City  in  conflict  with  the  provisions  herein 

contained are, to the extent of such conflict, hereby superseded and repealed. 

 

 

 

 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 

 

 

 

 

   



5 
4811-1346-9756.1 

  SECTION 6.  EFFECTIVE DATE.      

 

This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption this 5th day of December 

2016. 

 

 

 

              GULF BREEZE, FLORIDA 

              CITY COUNCIL 

 

 

 

(SEAL)  By:  _________________________________ 

Matt E. Dannheisser, Mayor 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

By:  __________________________________ 

Stephanie D. Lucas, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

A‐1 
4811-1346-9756.1 

EXHIBIT “A” TO RESOLUTION 

 

REPORT OF HEARING OFFICER 

SENIOR CARE LIVING OF PALM BAY, LLC 

 

This instrument shall constitute the official report of the undersigned designated official 

of the City of Gulf Breeze, Florida (the “City”), a municipal corporation of the State of Florida, 

with respect to a public hearing scheduled and held by the City on November 14, 2016, for and on 

behalf of the Capital Trust Agency (the “Agency”), a legal entity and public agency created and 

existing  under  Chapter  163,  Part  I,  and  Chapter  617,  Florida  Statutes,  and  established  and 

empowered by the provisions of Chapter 159, Part II, Florida Statutes, Chapter 163, Part I, et seq., 

Chapter  166,  Part  II,  Florida  Statutes,  Chapter  617,  Florida  Statutes  and  other  applicable 

provisions  of  law,  in  connection with  the  proposed  issuance  of  the Agency’s  not  exceeding 

$45,000,000  revenue  bonds  (the  “Bonds”)  on  behalf  of  Senior Care  Living  of  Palm  Bay,  LLC, 

Florida  limited  liability company, or one or more of  its affiliates, and whose principal place of 

business  is  8380  Bay  Pines  Blvd.,  3rd  Floor,  St.  Petersburg,  Florida  33709  (as  applicable,  the 

“Borrower”).    The  proceeds  of  the  Bonds  will  be  loaned  to  the  Borrower  for  financing  or 

refinancing,  including  through  reimbursement,  the  cost  of  the  acquisition,  construction, 

development,  installation and equipping of a senior  living  facility,  including related  facilities, 

fixtures,  furnishings and equipment and  comprised of approximately 125  independent  living 

units,  to be known as “Inspired  Independent Living at Palm Bay,” as more  fully described  in 

Exhibit “A” hereto (the “Senior Living Facility”). 

 

  The public hearing was duly advertised in the Gulf Breeze News, a newspaper of general 

circulation  in  the  jurisdiction of  the City, on October 27, 2016.   The proof of publication was 

presented to me at such hearing, and a copy is attached hereto as Exhibit “B” (the “Notice”). 

 

  The hearing commenced at the time and location stated in the Notice.  At such hearing, 

interested individuals were afforded reasonable opportunity to express their views, both orally 

and in writing, on all matters pertaining to the plan of finance and the financing of the Senior 

Living  Facility.    Information  about  the  proposed  Bonds,  the  location  of  the  Senior  Living 

Facility, and the proposed use of the proceeds were presented.  When the information had been 

presented, opportunity was given for members of the public in attendance to give their input.  It 

was noted that no written communication was received.   

 

 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]   



 
 

A‐2 
4811-1346-9756.1 

 

No  interested party was  in  attendance  at  the public hearing.   Minutes of  the Council 

Meeting, including the public hearing, will be kept on file with the City Clerk as referenced in 

Exhibit “C” hereto.  The undersigned then concluded the hearing.   

 

              Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

              By: ________________________________ 

                Edwin Eddy, City Manager 

                City of Gulf Breeze, Florida 



 
 

A‐3 
4811-1346-9756.1 

EXHIBIT “A” TO REPORT OF HEARING OFFICER 

SENIOR CARE LIVING OF PALM BAY, LLC 

 

 

The  Senior  Living  Facility  consists  of  the  acquisition,  construction,  development, 

installation  and  equipping  of  a  senior  living  facility,  including  related  facilities,  fixtures, 

furnishings and equipment and comprised of approximately 125  independent  living units  for 

the elderly, to be known as “Inspired Independent Living at Palm Bay” and to be located on a 

site  containing  approximately  7  acres  at  350 Malabar Road  SW,  Palm  Bay,  Brevard County, 

Florida. 

 

 

   



 
 

A‐4 
4811-1346-9756.1 

EXHIBIT “B” TO REPORT OF HEARING OFFICER 

SENIOR CARE LIVING OF PALM BAY, LLC 

 

 

PROOF OF PUBLICATION 

 

 

 

 

 

[FOLLOWS] 

 



 
 

A‐5 
4811-1346-9756.1 

EXHIBIT “C” TO REPORT OF HEARING OFFICER 

SENIOR CARE LIVING OF PALM BAY, LLC 

 

 

 

MINUTES OF COUNCIL MEETING INCLUDING 

 PUBLIC HEARING ON FILE WITH CITY CLERK  

 

 

 

 

 



 

1 
 

EXHIBIT “B” TO RESOLUTION 

 

AMENDMENT NO. 74 

OF THE ENABLING AGREEMENT 

 

[Follows] 



 

2 
 

AMENDMENT NO. 74 TO INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 

 

This AMENDMENT NO. 74 TO INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT (this “Amendment No. 

74”) is made and entered into as of the __th day of December, 2016, by and among the CITY OF 

GULF BREEZE, FLORIDA, a municipal corporation of the State of Florida (“Gulf Breeze”) and 

the  TOWN  OF  CENTURY,  FLORIDA,  a  municipal  corporation  of  the  State  of  Florida 

(“Century”).  Gulf Breeze and Century may collectively be referred to herein as the “Parties.” 

 

WITNESSETH: 

 

WHEREAS,  pursuant  to  an  Interlocal  Agreement  dated  as  of  August  2,  1999,  as 

amended by Amendments No. 1 through No. 73 (collectively, the “Enabling Agreement”), the 

Parties  hereto  have  heretofore  provided  for  the  creation  of  the  Capital  Trust  Agency  (the 

“Agency”), to enable public, private and not‐for‐profit organizations to obtain public assistance 

in  financing certain projects or programs  that benefit, enhance and/or serve a public purpose; 

and  

 

  WHEREAS,  Senior Care Living  of  Palm Bay, LLC,  a  Florida  limited  liability  company, 

and/or one or more of its affiliates (as applicable, the “Borrower”), has represented to the Agency 

that, acting for  itself or  through  its affiliates,  it  is engaged  in, among other  things,  the acquiring, 

constructing, developing, installing and equipping of senior living facilities; and 

 

  WHEREAS, on October 5, 2016, the Agency approved a request by the Borrower that the 

Agency issue its revenue bonds in a principal amount not to exceed $45,000,000 (the exact amount 

to be determined by  the appropriate official of  the Agency, as being  the amount  required  to 

fund  the financing herein authorized),  in one or more series from time to time (collectively, the 

“Bonds”) and loan the net proceeds thereof to the Borrower, for the purpose, among other things, 

of  financing  or  refinancing,  including  through  reimbursement,  the  acquisition,  construction, 

development,  installation  and  equipping  of  a  senior  living  facility,  and  the  acquisition  and 

installation of related facilities, fixtures, furnishings and equipment, as described on Schedule “I” 

attached hereto, which, by  this reference  thereto,  is  incorporated herein,  to provide  independent 

living for the elderly (the “Senior Living Facility”); and 

 

WHEREAS, the Agency will issue its Bonds on a case‐by‐case basis after review by the 

Agency,  to  provide  financing  and  refinancing  from  time  to  time  for  individual  projects  or 

groups of projects, or eligible financing programs, based upon the credit pledged therefor from 

one or more of  the projects,  the Borrower, a sponsor, a credit enhancement  facility,  if any, or 

from the revenues of any such programs; and  

 

WHEREAS, Section 7 of the Enabling Agreement requires that as a condition precedent 

to the Agency issuing the Bonds, the Agency must obtain the prior written approval, evidenced 

by resolution, from the governing bodies of Century and Gulf Breeze approving such issuance 

and  approving  an  amendment  to  the  Enabling  Agreement  specifically  authorizing  such 



 

3 
 

issuance.   Such approval evidenced by appropriate resolutions has been obtained, authorizing 

the execution and delivery of this Amendment No. 74 to the Enabling Agreement with respect 

to the financing herein described; and 

 

WHEREAS,  the  Parties  desire  to  amend  the  Enabling  Agreement  to  permit  and 

authorize the Agency to issue the Bonds herein described and loan the proceeds to the Borrower 

in order to provide financing, including through reimbursement, for the Senior Living Facility; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties hereby agree as follows: 

 

SECTION 1.  AMENDMENT OF ENABLING AGREEMENT APPROVED. 

 

This Amendment No. 74 is entered into pursuant to Section 7 of the Enabling Agreement 

for the purpose of authorizing the Agency to issue the Bonds and to finance projects of the type 

and character of the Senior Living Facility. 

 

SECTION 2.  BONDS, PROGRAM, PLAN OF FINANCE APPROVED. 

 

The Parties do hereby approve and authorize the Bonds, and the issuance of Bonds from 

time  to  time,  in  one  or  more  series,  in  an  aggregate  principal  amount  of  not  to  exceed 

$45,000,000 (the exact amount to be determined by an appropriate official of the Agency to be 

sufficient  to  enable  the  financing,  including  through  reimbursement,  of  the  Senior  Living 

Facility).  Each installment or issue of such Bonds shall be designated by series, in such manner 

as the Agency shall determine, so as to separately identify each such installment or issue.  The 

Agency and its officers, employees, agents and attorneys are hereby authorized to enter into, on 

behalf of the Agency, from time to time,  interlocal agreements, cash management agreements, 

interest rate swap or hedge transactions, investment agreements, repurchase agreements, bond 

credit  or  insurance  agreements,  escrow  agreements,  reimbursement  agreements,  security 

documents and other agreements, approvals or instruments deemed necessary or convenient to 

effect  or  implement  the  financing  or  refinancing,  including  through  reimbursement,  of  the 

Senior Living Facility  through  the  issuance of  the Bonds, and  the purposes and programs  for 

which  the  Bonds  are  to  be  issued  and  to  conform  the  purposes  stated  in  the  Articles  of 

Incorporation of  the Agency  to authorizations herein contained.   No obligation of  the Agency 

under  any  such  agreement  or  instrument  shall  constitute  an  obligation  of  Century  or  Gulf 

Breeze.   The Bonds  shall be  limited  and  special obligations of  the Agency, payable  from  the 

revenues or receipts of the programs or projects, payments by the Borrower, a sponsor, or other 

sources relating  to  the purpose  for which  they are  issued, all  in  the  indentures  for  the Bonds.  

The Bonds shall not constitute a pledge of the faith and credit or taxing power of or constitute 

an obligation of Century or of Gulf Breeze.  

 

SECTION 3.  ADMINISTRATIVE FEES AND EXPENSES FOR CENTURY. 

 



 

4 
 

Upon the issuance of each series or installment of Bonds, Century shall be paid by either 

the Agency or Gulf Breeze, solely from amounts received from the Borrower, the sum specified 

on Schedule II attached hereto, which, by this reference thereto, is incorporated herein. 

 

SECTION 4.  ENABLING AGREEMENT CONTINUED.   

 

The  Enabling  Agreement,  as  amended  hereby,  is  hereby  ratified,  confirmed  and 

approved and shall otherwise continue in full force and effect.  Nothing in this Amendment No. 

74  shall  be  deemed  to  adversely  affect  the  authorizations  in  the  Enabling  Agreement  as  it 

existed prior to the effective date of this Amendment No. 74, or to adversely affect the interests 

of the holders of any Bonds issued or to be issued pursuant to such authorizations.   Except as 

and  only  to  the  extent  specifically  amended  hereby,  such  Enabling  Agreement  is  hereby 

incorporated by reference. 

 

SECTION 5.  INDEMNITY. 

 

To the extent permitted by law, the Agency and Gulf Breeze shall indemnify and defend 

Century and hold Century harmless against any and all claims, losses, liabilities or damages to 

property  or  any  injury  or  death  of  any  person  or  persons  occurring  in  connection with  the 

issuance of the Bonds pursuant hereto, or in connection with the acquisition or operation of any 

project, or for any liability any way growing out of or resulting from the Enabling Agreement, 

as  amended,  this  Amendment  No.  74,  the  financing  agreements  and/or  bond  indentures 

executed in connection with the Bonds, including, without limitation, all costs and expenses of 

Century,  including reasonable attorney’s  fees,  incurred  in  the performance of any activities of 

Century  in connection with the foregoing or the enforcement of any agreement of the Agency 

herein  contained.   Any  such obligation of Gulf Breeze or  the Agency  shall be payable  solely 

from the amounts available to them for such purposes under the Bond financing or refinancing 

or any other plan of  finance heretofore or hereafter undertaken by  the Agency, and shall not 

constitute a general obligation or a pledge of the faith and credit of Gulf Breeze or the Agency, 

or an obligation to pay the same from any sources other than such amounts available to them 

for such purposes under the Bond financing.  

 

SECTION 6.  SEVERABILITY OF INVALID PROVISIONS. 

 

If any one or more of the covenants, agreements or provisions herein contained shall be 

held contrary to any express provisions of law or contrary to the policy of express law, though 

not expressly prohibited, or against public policy, or shall  for any reason whatsoever be held 

invalid,  then  such  covenants,  agreements  or  provisions  shall  be  null  and  void  and  shall  be 

deemed severable from the remaining covenants, agreements or provisions and shall in no way 

affect the validity of any of the other provisions hereto. 

   



 

5 
 

  SECTION 7.  COUNTERPARTS. 

 

This  Amendment  may  be  simultaneously  executed  in  several  counterparts,  each  of 

which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the same instrument. 

 

SECTION 8.  EFFECTIVE DATE; AMENDMENTS. 

 

This  Amendment  shall  take  effect  when  duly  executed  by  the  Parties  and  filed  in 

accordance with law.  This Amendment may be amended only by written instrument signed by 

authorized  representatives  of Century  and  of Gulf  Breeze;  provided,  however,  that  no  such 

amendment which would  adversely  affect  the  rights  of  the  holders  or  owners  of  any  then 

outstanding Bonds of the Agency or of any other member shall take effect until such time as all 

necessary  consents or approvals with  respect  to  such Bonds  shall have been obtained,  in  the 

case of the rights of bondholders, or the consents and approvals of the affected members, in the 

case of the rights of members. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank]



 

 

S‐1 
4811-1346-9756.1 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF,  the Parties  have  caused  this Amendment No.  74  to  the Enabling 

Agreement to be executed by their duly authorized officers as of the date first above written. 

 

 

  CITY OF GULF BREEZE, FLORIDA 

[SEAL] 

 

 

  By: _________________________________________ 

Matt E. Dannheisser, Mayor  

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

By: __________________________________ 

       Stephanie D. Lucas, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

[Signature Page to Amendment No. 74 to Interlocal Agreement] 

   



 

 

S‐2 
4811-1346-9756.1 

 

 

  TOWN OF CENTURY, FLORIDA 

 

[SEAL] 

 

  By: ________________________________ 

         Freddie W. McCall, Sr., Mayor  

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

By: ____________________________________ 

       Leslie Gonzalez, Town Clerk 

 

 

 

 

[Signature Page to Amendment No. 74 to Interlocal Agreement] 

 

 

 



 

 

SCHEDULE I 
4811-1346-9756.1 

 

SCHEDULE I 

 

Project Description 

 

The  Senior  Living  Facility  consists  of  the  acquisition,  construction,  development, 

installation  and  equipping  of  a  senior  living  facility,  including  related  facilities,  fixtures, 

furnishings and equipment and comprised of approximately 125 independent living units, to be 

known as “Inspired  Independent Living at Palm Bay” and  to be  located on a  site  containing 

approximately 7 acres at 350 Malabar Road SW, Palm Bay, Brevard County, Florida. 

 



 

B‐1 
4811-1346-9756.1 

SCHEDULE II 

 

Payment to Century 

 

$350.00 per million principal amount of each  issue, upon  issuance  thereof, but not  less 

than $2,500.00. 

 



 

SCHEDULE I 
4811-1346-9756.1 

SCHEDULE “I” TO RESOLUTION 

 

The  Senior  Living  Facility  consists  of  the  acquisition,  construction,  development, 

installation  and  equipping  of  a  senior  living  facility,  including  related  facilities,  fixtures, 

furnishings and equipment and comprised of approximately 125  independent  living units  for 

the elderly, to be known as “Inspired Independent Living at Palm Bay” and to be located on a 

site  containing  approximately  7  acres  at  350 Malabar Road  SW,  Palm  Bay,  Brevard County, 

Florida. 

 

 



 

1 
4831-2018-1820.1 

RESOLUTION 38‐16 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GULF BREEZE, 

FLORIDA, APPROVING A PLAN OF  FINANCE  IN ORDER TO  FINANCE 

OR REFINANCE, INCLUDING THROUGH REIMBURSEMENT THE COSTS 

OF  THE  ACQUISITION,  CONSTRUCTION,  DEVELOPMENT, 

INSTALLATION AND EQUIPPING OF THE HEREIN DESCRIBED SENIOR 

LIVING FACILITY LOCATED  IN THE STATE OF FLORIDA; APPROVING 

THE  ISSUANCE  OF  NOT  EXCEEDING  $47,000,000  CAPITAL  TRUST 

AGENCY REVENUE BONDS FOR THE PURPOSE OF FINANCING A LOAN 

PROGRAM TO ASSIST IN FINANCING SUCH SENIOR LIVING FACILITY; 

APPROVAL OF A HEREIN DESCRIBED AMENDMENT TO  INTERLOCAL 

AGREEMENT  CREATING  THE  CAPITAL  TRUST AGENCY;  PROVIDING 

FOR  REPEAL  OF  CONFLICTING  PROVISIONS;  AND  PROVIDING  AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

  WHEREAS, the City Council (the “City Council”) of Gulf Breeze, Florida (the “City”), a 

municipal corporation of  the State of Florida  (the “State”), has heretofore adopted Resolution 

No. 14‐99 dated as of  July 19, 1999  (the “Original Resolution”), and entered  into an  Interlocal 

Agreement between the City and the Town of Century, Florida, dated as of August 2, 1999, as 

amended  by  Amendment  No.  1  through  No.  74  (collectively,  the  “Enabling  Agreement”), 

approving  the  creation of  the Capital Trust Agency  (the  “Agency”),  a  legal entity and public 

agency  of  the  State,  organized  and  existing  under  the  provisions  of  Chapter  163,  Part  I,  and 

Chapter 159, Part  II, Florida Statutes, Ordinance No. 05‐97 duly enacted by  the City Council, as 

amended, and  its Articles of  Incorporation, as amended and other applicable provisions of  law 

(collectively the “Act”), to enable public, private and not‐for‐profit organizations to obtain public 

assistance  in  financing  and  refinancing,  including  through  reimbursement,  certain  beneficial 

projects or programs that benefit, enhance and/or serve a public purpose; and 

 

  WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act and  in accordance with the provisions of the Original 

Resolution, the Agency did on October 5, 2016, take official action by adopting its preliminary 

resolution (the “Agency Resolution”) indicating its intent to authorize the financing, including 

through reimbursement, of the hereinafter described project, and the issuance from time to time 

of revenue bonds (the “Bonds”) by the Agency for a loan program for the purposes, among other 

things, of financing or refinancing, including through reimbursement, the acquisition, construction, 

development,  installation  and  equipping  of  a  senior  living  facility,  and  the  acquisition  and 

installation of related facilities, fixtures, furnishings and equipment, as described on Schedule “I” 

attached hereto, which, by this reference thereto, is incorporated herein, to provide assisted living 

and memory support services for the elderly (collectively, the “Senior Living Facility”); and 

 

  WHEREAS, the City has been advised that the Agency desires to issue the Bonds in an 

aggregate principal amount of not exceeding $47,000,000 (the exact amount to be determined by 

the  appropriate  official  of  the Agency,  as  being  the  amount  required  to  fund  the  financing 



 

2 
4831-2018-1820.1 

herein  authorized),  to  finance  the  Senior  Living  Facility  on  behalf  of  Senior  Care  Living  of 

Jacksonville, LLC,  a Florida  limited  liability  company,  and/or  one  or more  of  its  affiliates,  as 

described  on  the  attached  Schedule  “I,” whose principal place  of business  is  8380 Bay Pines 

Blvd., 3rd Floor, St. Petersburg, Florida 33709 (as applicable, the “Borrower”) to fund a program 

herein described  (the “Plan of Finance”),  such Senior Living Facility  to be managed  initially by 

Validus Senior Living REIT Investment Company, LLC, a Florida limited liability company (the 

“Manager”); and 

 

WHEREAS,  the  proposed  Senior  Living  Facility  is  appropriate  to  the  needs  and 

circumstances of the community in which it will be located and will serve a public purpose by 

(i)  providing  gainful  employment  and  making  a  significant  contribution  to  the  economic 

growth of the local community, (ii) promoting commerce within the State, (iii) serving a public 

purpose  by  providing  safe,  decent  and  accessible  housing  facilities  for  the  elderly,  and  (iv) 

advancing the economic prosperity and the general welfare of the State and its people; and 

 

WHEREAS, in order to advance and further the public purposes set forth in the Act, it is 

necessary and in the public interest to facilitate the financing of the Senior Living Facility and to 

facilitate and encourage  the planning and development of such Senior Living Facility without 

regard  to  the  boundaries  between  counties, municipalities,  special  districts,  and  other  local 

governmental bodies or agencies in order to more effectively and efficiently serve the interests 

of the greatest number of people in the widest area practicable; and 

 

  WHEREAS,  Section  147(f)  of  the  Internal  Revenue  Code  of  1986,  as  amended  (the 

“Code”),  requires  public  approval  of  certain  revenue  bonds  by  an  applicable  elected 

representative or governmental unit on behalf of which such bonds are to be issued, following a 

public hearing; and 

 

  WHEREAS, (i) notice of such public hearing was given in the form required by the Code 

by publication at least fourteen (14) days prior to such public hearing in the Gulf Breeze News on 

October 27, 2016, and (ii) the Bonds and the Plan of Finance have been submitted to such public 

hearing  held  on  behalf  of  the  City  Council  of  the  City  of  Gulf  Breeze,  Florida  (the  “City 

Council”) on November 14, 2016; and 

 

  WHEREAS,  the City Manager has conducted  the public hearing on behalf of  the City 

Council and provided reasonable opportunity for all interested persons to express their views, 

both  orally  and  in writing  and  diligently  and  conscientiously  considered  all  comments  and 

concerns expressed by such individuals, if any; and  

 

  WHEREAS,  the City Council desires  to approve  the Bonds and  the  issuance and  sale 

thereof pursuant to the Plan of Finance and to grant all approvals required or contemplated by 

Section 147(f) of  the Code,  to  express  its approval of  the action  taken by  the Agency and  its 

officials pursuant  to  the Agency Resolution, and  to grant all other approvals  required by  the 



 

3 
4831-2018-1820.1 

Enabling Agreement, as amended and the Original Resolution in connection with the issuance 

and sale of the Bonds;  

 

  NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

GULF BREEZE, FLORIDA: 

 

  SECTION 1.  PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE AND REPORT APPROVED.      

 

The City Council  hereby  approves  the  form  of  and  the manner  of publication  of  the 

Notice of Public Hearing (the ʺNoticeʺ) published on October 27, 2016, in the Gulf Breeze News, a 

newspaper  of  general  circulation  in  the  jurisdiction  of  the  City.    The  City  Council  hereby 

approves  the report of  the public hearing conducted by  the City Manager, a copy of which  is 

attached as Exhibit “A” hereto.  Such Notice and other means and methods utilized by the City 

to  give  notice  of  purpose,  time  and  date  of  the  public  hearing  provided  reasonable  notice 

sufficient to inform residents of the City of the proposed Bonds.   

 

SECTION 2.  BONDS AND PLAN OF FINANCE APPROVED.      

 

For purposes of the Act, the City hereby approves the Plan of Finance described herein, 

and the issuance of the Bonds described in the Notice.  The Agency and its officers, employees, 

agents and attorneys are hereby authorized from time to time to take all action, to execute and 

deliver such authorizations, approvals, certificates and documents, and to enter into, on behalf 

of the Agency, such interlocal agreements, interest rate swap or hedge transactions, investment 

agreements,  repurchase  agreements,  bond  credit  or  insurance  agreements,  reimbursement 

agreements, and other agreements, approvals or  instruments deemed necessary or convenient 

to  effect,  implement,  maintain  and  continue  the  Plan  of  Finance,  the  financing,  including 

through reimbursement, of the Senior Living Facility through the issuance from time to time of 

the Bonds and the purposes for which the Bonds are to be issued, including, without limitation, 

the Amendment (hereinafter defined) and the Agency Resolution.  No obligation of the Agency 

under  any  such  agreement  shall  constitute  an obligation of  the City  except  to  the  extent  the 

same  may  be  expressly  approved  by  the  City.    The  Bonds  shall  be  limited  and  special 

obligations of  the Agency, and  shall not  constitute a pledge of  the  faith and  credit or  taxing 

power of or constitute an obligation of the City.  

 

  SECTION 3.  AMENDMENT TO THE ENABLING AGREEMENT APPROVED.   

 

Pursuant  to  the  Enabling  Agreement,  there  is  hereby  approved  the  execution  and 

delivery of Amendment No.  75  to  the Enabling Agreement  (the  “Amendment”)  to  effect  the 

approvals set forth in Section 1 and Section 2 hereof.  Such Amendment shall be in substantially 

the form attached hereto as Exhibit “B,” and the Mayor is authorized to execute and deliver the 

same on behalf of the City Council, with such changes not inconsistent herewith as the Mayor 

shall approve, his execution thereof to conclusively establish such approval. 

 



 

4 
4831-2018-1820.1 

  SECTION 4.  TEFRA APPROVAL.   

 

After diligent  and  conscientious  consideration  of  the  views  expressed  by  the persons 

appearing at the public hearing, the City Council hereby approves the Agency’s Plan of Finance 

which includes (i) the issuance by the Agency of not exceeding $47,000,000 aggregate principal 

amount of revenue bonds for all purposes of the Enabling Agreement, as amended, and for all 

purposes of the Original Resolution and (ii) the issuance by the Agency of either taxable or tax‐

exempt, or both, bonds in an amount not exceeding $47,000,000 for all purposes under Section 

147(f) of the Code. 

 

  SECTION 5.  REPEALING CLAUSE.      

 

All  resolutions  or  parts  thereof  of  the  City  in  conflict  with  the  provisions  herein 

contained are, to the extent of such conflict, hereby superseded and repealed. 

 

 

 

 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 

 

 

 

 

   



 

5 
4831-2018-1820.1 

  SECTION 6.  EFFECTIVE DATE.      

 

This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption this 5th day of December 

2016. 

 

 

 

              GULF BREEZE, FLORIDA 

              CITY COUNCIL 

 

 

 

(SEAL)  By:  _________________________________ 

Matt E. Dannheisser, Mayor 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

By:  __________________________________ 

Stephanie D. Lucas, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
 

A‐1 
4831-2018-1820.1 

EXHIBIT “A” TO RESOLUTION 

 

REPORT OF HEARING OFFICER 

SENIOR CARE LIVING OF JACKSONVILLE, LLC 

 

This instrument shall constitute the official report of the undersigned designated official 

of the City of Gulf Breeze, Florida (the “City”), a municipal corporation of the State of Florida, 

with respect to a public hearing scheduled and held by the City on November 14, 2016, for and on 

behalf of the Capital Trust Agency (the “Agency”), a legal entity and public agency created and 

existing  under  Chapter  163,  Part  I,  and  Chapter  617,  Florida  Statutes,  and  established  and 

empowered by the provisions of Chapter 159, Part II, Florida Statutes, Chapter 163, Part I, et seq., 

Chapter  166,  Part  II,  Florida  Statutes,  Chapter  617,  Florida  Statutes  and  other  applicable 

provisions  of  law,  in  connection with  the  proposed  issuance  of  the Agency’s  not  exceeding 

$47,000,000  revenue bonds  (the “Bonds”) on behalf of Senior Care Living of  Jacksonville, LLC, 

Florida  limited  liability company, or one or more of  its affiliates, and whose principal place of 

business  is  8380  Bay  Pines  Blvd.,  3rd  Floor,  St.  Petersburg,  Florida  33709  (as  applicable,  the 

“Borrower”).    The  proceeds  of  the  Bonds  will  be  loaned  to  the  Borrower  for  financing  or 

refinancing,  including  through  reimbursement,  the  cost  of  the  acquisition,  construction, 

development,  installation and equipping of a senior  living  facility,  including related  facilities, 

fixtures, furnishings and equipment and comprised of approximately 109 assisted  living units 

and approximately 43 memory care units, to be known as “Inspired Living at Jacksonville,” as 

more fully described in Exhibit “A” hereto (the “Senior Living Facility”). 

 

  The public hearing was duly advertised in the Gulf Breeze News, a newspaper of general 

circulation  in  the  jurisdiction of  the City, on October 27, 2016.   The proof of publication was 

presented to me at such hearing, and a copy is attached hereto as Exhibit “B” (the “Notice”). 

 

  The hearing commenced at the time and location stated in the Notice.  At such hearing, 

interested individuals were afforded reasonable opportunity to express their views, both orally 

and in writing, on all matters pertaining to the plan of finance and the financing of the Senior 

Living  Facility.    Information  about  the  proposed  Bonds,  the  location  of  the  Senior  Living 

Facility, and the proposed use of the proceeds were presented.  When the information had been 

presented, opportunity was given for members of the public in attendance to give their input.  It 

was noted that no written communication was received.   

 

 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]   



 

 
 

A‐2 
4831-2018-1820.1 

 

No  interested party was  in  attendance  at  the public hearing.   Minutes of  the Council 

Meeting, including the public hearing, will be kept on file with the City Clerk as referenced in 

Exhibit “C” hereto.  The undersigned then concluded the hearing.   

 

              Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

              By: ________________________________ 

                Edwin Eddy, City Manager 

                City of Gulf Breeze, Florida 



 

 
 

A‐3 
4831-2018-1820.1 

EXHIBIT “A” TO REPORT OF HEARING OFFICER 

SENIOR CARE LIVING OF JACKSONVILLE, LLC 

 

 

The  Senior  Living  Facility  consists  of  the  acquisition,  construction,  development, 

installation  and  equipping  of  a  senior  living  facility,  including  related  facilities,  fixtures, 

furnishings  and  equipment  and  comprised  of  approximately  109  assisted  living  units  and 

approximately 43 memory care units, to be known as “Inspired Living at Jacksonville” and to be 

located on a  site containing approximately 19.91 acres  located on  the west  side of Burnt Mill 

Road  in  Jacksonville, Duval County,  Florida  32256 with  approximately  400  feet  fronting  on 

Burnt Mill Road (between an unpaved road and the driveway to a utility plant), which frontage 

and  site  is  adjacent  to  and  south  of Meridian Business Park  (located  at  5022 Gate Parkway, 

Jacksonville, Florida 32256 and also fronting on Burnt Mill Road) and adjacent to and northwest 

of the James Island residential development (which fronts on Burnt Mill Road). 

 

 

   



 

 
 

A‐4 
4831-2018-1820.1 

EXHIBIT “B” TO REPORT OF HEARING OFFICER 

SENIOR CARE LIVING OF JACKSONVILLE, LLC 

 

 

PROOF OF PUBLICATION 

 

 

 

 

 

[FOLLOWS] 

 



 

 
 

A‐5 
4831-2018-1820.1 

EXHIBIT “C” TO REPORT OF HEARING OFFICER 

SENIOR CARE LIVING OF JACKSONVILLE, LLC 

 

 

 

MINUTES OF COUNCIL MEETING INCLUDING 

 PUBLIC HEARING ON FILE WITH CITY CLERK  

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 1 
4831-2018-1820.1 

EXHIBIT “B” TO RESOLUTION 

 

AMENDMENT NO. 75 

OF THE ENABLING AGREEMENT 

 

[Follows] 

   



 

 

 2 
4831-2018-1820.1 

AMENDMENT NO. 75 TO INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 

 

This AMENDMENT NO. 75 TO INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT (this “Amendment No. 

75”) is made and entered into as of the __th day of December, 2016, by and among the CITY OF 

GULF BREEZE, FLORIDA, a municipal corporation of the State of Florida (“Gulf Breeze”) and 

the  TOWN  OF  CENTURY,  FLORIDA,  a  municipal  corporation  of  the  State  of  Florida 

(“Century”).  Gulf Breeze and Century may collectively be referred to herein as the “Parties.” 

 

WITNESSETH: 

 

WHEREAS,  pursuant  to  an  Interlocal  Agreement  dated  as  of  August  2,  1999,  as 

amended by Amendments No. 1 through No. 74 (collectively, the “Enabling Agreement”), the 

Parties  hereto  have  heretofore  provided  for  the  creation  of  the  Capital  Trust  Agency  (the 

“Agency”), to enable public, private and not‐for‐profit organizations to obtain public assistance 

in  financing certain projects or programs  that benefit, enhance and/or serve a public purpose; 

and  

 

  WHEREAS, Senior Care Living of  Jacksonville, LLC, a Florida  limited  liability company, 

and/or one or more of its affiliates (as applicable, the “Borrower”), has represented to the Agency 

that, acting for  itself or  through  its affiliates,  it  is engaged  in, among other  things,  the acquiring, 

constructing, developing, installing and equipping of senior living facilities; and 

 

  WHEREAS, on October 5, 2016, the Agency approved a request by the Borrower that the 

Agency issue its revenue bonds in a principal amount not to exceed $47,000,000 (the exact amount 

to be determined by  the appropriate official of  the Agency, as being  the amount  required  to 

fund  the financing herein authorized),  in one or more series from time to time (collectively, the 

“Bonds”) and loan the net proceeds thereof to the Borrower, for the purpose, among other things, 

of  financing  or  refinancing,  including  through  reimbursement,  the  acquisition,  construction, 

development,  installation  and  equipping  of  a  senior  living  facility,  and  the  acquisition  and 

installation of related facilities, fixtures, furnishings and equipment, as described on Schedule “I” 

attached hereto, which, by this reference thereto, is incorporated herein, to provide assisted living 

and memory support services for the elderly (the “Senior Living Facility”); and 

 

WHEREAS, the Agency will issue its Bonds on a case‐by‐case basis after review by the 

Agency,  to  provide  financing  and  refinancing  from  time  to  time  for  individual  projects  or 

groups of projects, or eligible financing programs, based upon the credit pledged therefor from 

one or more of  the projects,  the Borrower, a sponsor, a credit enhancement  facility,  if any, or 

from the revenues of any such programs; and  

 

WHEREAS, Section 7 of the Enabling Agreement requires that as a condition precedent 

to the Agency issuing the Bonds, the Agency must obtain the prior written approval, evidenced 

by resolution, from the governing bodies of Century and Gulf Breeze approving such issuance 

and  approving  an  amendment  to  the  Enabling  Agreement  specifically  authorizing  such 



 

 

 3 
4831-2018-1820.1 

issuance.   Such approval evidenced by appropriate resolutions has been obtained, authorizing 

the execution and delivery of this Amendment No. 75 to the Enabling Agreement with respect 

to the financing herein described; and 

 

WHEREAS,  the  Parties  desire  to  amend  the  Enabling  Agreement  to  permit  and 

authorize the Agency to issue the Bonds herein described and loan the proceeds to the Borrower 

in order to provide financing, including through reimbursement, for the Senior Living Facility; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties hereby agree as follows: 

 

SECTION 1.  AMENDMENT OF ENABLING AGREEMENT APPROVED. 

 

This Amendment No. 75 is entered into pursuant to Section 7 of the Enabling Agreement 

for the purpose of authorizing the Agency to issue the Bonds and to finance projects of the type 

and character of the Senior Living Facility. 

 

SECTION 2.  BONDS, PROGRAM, PLAN OF FINANCE APPROVED. 

 

The Parties do hereby approve and authorize the Bonds, and the issuance of Bonds from 

time  to  time,  in  one  or  more  series,  in  an  aggregate  principal  amount  of  not  to  exceed 

$47,000,000 (the exact amount to be determined by an appropriate official of the Agency to be 

sufficient  to  enable  the  financing,  including  through  reimbursement,  of  the  Senior  Living 

Facility).  Each installment or issue of such Bonds shall be designated by series, in such manner 

as the Agency shall determine, so as to separately identify each such installment or issue.  The 

Agency and its officers, employees, agents and attorneys are hereby authorized to enter into, on 

behalf of the Agency, from time to time,  interlocal agreements, cash management agreements, 

interest rate swap or hedge transactions, investment agreements, repurchase agreements, bond 

credit  or  insurance  agreements,  escrow  agreements,  reimbursement  agreements,  security 

documents and other agreements, approvals or instruments deemed necessary or convenient to 

effect  or  implement  the  financing  or  refinancing,  including  through  reimbursement,  of  the 

Senior Living Facility  through  the  issuance of  the Bonds, and  the purposes and programs  for 

which  the  Bonds  are  to  be  issued  and  to  conform  the  purposes  stated  in  the  Articles  of 

Incorporation of  the Agency  to authorizations herein contained.   No obligation of  the Agency 

under  any  such  agreement  or  instrument  shall  constitute  an  obligation  of  Century  or  Gulf 

Breeze.   The Bonds  shall be  limited  and  special obligations of  the Agency, payable  from  the 

revenues or receipts of the programs or projects, payments by the Borrower, a sponsor, or other 

sources relating  to  the purpose  for which  they are  issued, all  in  the  indentures  for  the Bonds.  

The Bonds shall not constitute a pledge of the faith and credit or taxing power of or constitute 

an obligation of Century or of Gulf Breeze.  

 

SECTION 3.  ADMINISTRATIVE FEES AND EXPENSES FOR CENTURY. 

 



 

 

 4 
4831-2018-1820.1 

Upon the issuance of each series or installment of Bonds, Century shall be paid by either 

the Agency or Gulf Breeze, solely from amounts received from the Borrower, the sum specified 

on Schedule II attached hereto, which, by this reference thereto, is incorporated herein. 

 

SECTION 4.  ENABLING AGREEMENT CONTINUED.   

 

The  Enabling  Agreement,  as  amended  hereby,  is  hereby  ratified,  confirmed  and 

approved and shall otherwise continue in full force and effect.  Nothing in this Amendment No. 

75  shall  be  deemed  to  adversely  affect  the  authorizations  in  the  Enabling  Agreement  as  it 

existed prior to the effective date of this Amendment No. 75, or to adversely affect the interests 

of the holders of any Bonds issued or to be issued pursuant to such authorizations.   Except as 

and  only  to  the  extent  specifically  amended  hereby,  such  Enabling  Agreement  is  hereby 

incorporated by reference. 

 

SECTION 5.  INDEMNITY. 

 

To the extent permitted by law, the Agency and Gulf Breeze shall indemnify and defend 

Century and hold Century harmless against any and all claims, losses, liabilities or damages to 

property  or  any  injury  or  death  of  any  person  or  persons  occurring  in  connection with  the 

issuance of the Bonds pursuant hereto, or in connection with the acquisition or operation of any 

project, or for any liability any way growing out of or resulting from the Enabling Agreement, 

as  amended,  this  Amendment  No.  75,  the  financing  agreements  and/or  bond  indentures 

executed in connection with the Bonds, including, without limitation, all costs and expenses of 

Century,  including reasonable attorney’s  fees,  incurred  in  the performance of any activities of 

Century  in connection with the foregoing or the enforcement of any agreement of the Agency 

herein  contained.   Any  such obligation of Gulf Breeze or  the Agency  shall be payable  solely 

from the amounts available to them for such purposes under the Bond financing or refinancing 

or any other plan of  finance heretofore or hereafter undertaken by  the Agency, and shall not 

constitute a general obligation or a pledge of the faith and credit of Gulf Breeze or the Agency, 

or an obligation to pay the same from any sources other than such amounts available to them 

for such purposes under the Bond financing.  

 

SECTION 6.  SEVERABILITY OF INVALID PROVISIONS. 

 

If any one or more of the covenants, agreements or provisions herein contained shall be 

held contrary to any express provisions of law or contrary to the policy of express law, though 

not expressly prohibited, or against public policy, or shall  for any reason whatsoever be held 

invalid,  then  such  covenants,  agreements  or  provisions  shall  be  null  and  void  and  shall  be 

deemed severable from the remaining covenants, agreements or provisions and shall in no way 

affect the validity of any of the other provisions hereto. 

   



 

 

 5 
4831-2018-1820.1 

  SECTION 7.  COUNTERPARTS. 

 

This  Amendment  may  be  simultaneously  executed  in  several  counterparts,  each  of 

which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the same instrument. 

 

SECTION 8.  EFFECTIVE DATE; AMENDMENTS. 

 

This  Amendment  shall  take  effect  when  duly  executed  by  the  Parties  and  filed  in 

accordance with law.  This Amendment may be amended only by written instrument signed by 

authorized  representatives  of Century  and  of Gulf  Breeze;  provided,  however,  that  no  such 

amendment which would  adversely  affect  the  rights  of  the  holders  or  owners  of  any  then 

outstanding Bonds of the Agency or of any other member shall take effect until such time as all 

necessary  consents or approvals with  respect  to  such Bonds  shall have been obtained,  in  the 

case of the rights of bondholders, or the consents and approvals of the affected members, in the 

case of the rights of members. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank]



 

 

S‐1 
4831-2018-1820.1 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF,  the Parties  have  caused  this Amendment No.  75  to  the Enabling 

Agreement to be executed by their duly authorized officers as of the date first above written. 

 

 

  CITY OF GULF BREEZE, FLORIDA 

[SEAL] 

 

 

  By: _________________________________________ 

Matt E. Dannheisser, Mayor  

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

By: __________________________________ 

       Stephanie D. Lucas, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

[Signature Page to Amendment No. 75 to Interlocal Agreement] 

   



 

 

S‐2 
4831-2018-1820.1 

 

 

  TOWN OF CENTURY, FLORIDA 

 

[SEAL] 

 

  By: ________________________________ 

         Freddie W. McCall, Sr., Mayor  

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

By: ____________________________________ 

       Leslie Gonzalez, Town Clerk 

 

 

 

 

[Signature Page to Amendment No. 75 to Interlocal Agreement] 

 

 

 



 

 

SCHEDULE I 
4831-2018-1820.1 

 

SCHEDULE I 

 

Project Description 

 

The  Senior  Living  Facility  consists  of  the  acquisition,  construction,  development, 

installation  and  equipping  of  a  senior  living  facility,  including  related  facilities,  fixtures, 

furnishings  and  equipment  and  comprised  of  approximately  109  assisted  living  units  and 

approximately 43 memory care units, to be known as “Inspired Living at Jacksonville” and to be 

located on a  site containing approximately 19.91 acres  located on  the west  side of Burnt Mill 

Road  in  Jacksonville, Duval County,  Florida  32256 with  approximately  400  feet  fronting  on 

Burnt Mill Road (between an unpaved road and the driveway to a utility plant), which frontage 

and  site  is  adjacent  to  and  south  of Meridian Business Park  (located  at  5022 Gate Parkway, 

Jacksonville, Florida 32256 and also fronting on Burnt Mill Road) and adjacent to and northwest 

of the James Island residential development (which fronts on Burnt Mill Road). 

 



 

B‐1 
4831-2018-1820.1 

SCHEDULE II 

 

Payment to Century 

 

$350.00 per million principal amount of each  issue, upon  issuance  thereof, but not  less 

than $2,500.00. 

 



 

SCHEDULE I 
4831-2018-1820.1 

SCHEDULE “I” TO RESOLUTION 

 

The  Senior  Living  Facility  consists  of  the  acquisition,  construction,  development, 

installation  and  equipping  of  a  senior  living  facility,  including  related  facilities,  fixtures, 

furnishings  and  equipment  and  comprised  of  approximately  109  assisted  living  units  and 

approximately 43 memory care units, to be known as “Inspired Living at Jacksonville” and to be 

located on a  site containing approximately 19.91 acres  located on  the west  side of Burnt Mill 

Road  in  Jacksonville, Duval County,  Florida  32256 with  approximately  400  feet  fronting  on 

Burnt Mill Road (between an unpaved road and the driveway to a utility plant), which frontage 

and  site  is  adjacent  to  and  south  of Meridian Business Park  (located  at  5022 Gate Parkway, 

Jacksonville, Florida 32256 and also fronting on Burnt Mill Road) and adjacent to and northwest 

of the James Island residential development (which fronts on Burnt Mill Road). 

 

 



































































Gity of guu Breeze

OFFICE OF THE DEPUTY CITY MANAGER

Memorandum

Date

Subject:

Edwin A. Eddy, City Manager

Samantha D. Abell, Deputy City Manage~ft

November 28,2016

Discussion of Pensacola Bay Bridge Replacement Project

To

From

The Florida Department of Transportation is proposing to replace the Pensacola Bay Bridge which

carries SR 30 (US 98) across Pensacola Bay, connecting downtown Pensacola with the City of

Gulf Breeze. The Transportation Planning Organization (TPO) has provided the 90% design plans

to the City, and respective agencies must submit responses by December 9,2016.

City Staff has reviewed the design plans, reviewed a letter of concern from the Escambia Board of
County Commissioners, and spoken with Escambia County Engineering and City of Pensacola

Officials. The Maintenance of Traffic (MOT) Plan for the temporary bridge during construction

does not appear to be wide enough to allow emergency vehicles to traverse during emergency

situations. Escambia County Board of Commissioners has not yet received a response from FDOT

from the letter expressing safety concerns transmitted on October 12,2016.

The City Council may:

1. Request additional review time from Florida Department of Transportation so that the

public and media have adequate opportunity for review and input; and/or

2. Direct Staff to coordinate discussions with other affected local governments for a joint

review and response; and/or
3. Request that the concerns related to lane-width and emergency safety vehicles be placed

on the next agenda of the Transportation Planning Organization for an official response;

and/or
4. Draft a letter to the Florida Department of Transportation expressing objections with

designs relating to safety.

ATTACHMENTS:

Escambia County Board of County Commissioners Letter to FDOT Dated October 12,2016

Deputy City Manager Email to FDOT Dated November 23,2016



Samantha Abell

Subject:

Attachments:

FW:Nov 30th GBcouncil agenda

PensacolaBayBridge_Bee Ltr to SecretaryBarfield & Boxhold dtd 101316....pdf

From: SamanthaAbell [mailto:sabell@gulfbreezefl.gov]

Sent: Wednesday, November 23,2016 10:10 AM

To: 'kerrie.harrell@dot.state.fl.us' <kerrie.harrell@dot.state.fl.us>; 'phillip.gainer@dot.state.fl.us'

<phiIIip.gainer@dot.state.fl.us>

Cc:Edwin Eddy<eaeddy@gulfbreezefl.gov>; Nathan Ford <nford@gulfbreezefl.gov>; Stephanie Lucas

<slucas@gulfbreezefl.gov>

Subject: Nov 30th GBcouncil agenda

Ms. Harrell and Mr. Gainer,

Good morning. The City of Gulf Breezewould be very grateful if you both could attend the executive council meeting on

Wednesday, November so=, There will be a discussion item relating to the construction phaseof the bridge replacement

project, and the Council hasquestions relating to emergency vehicles. We've received a copy of the letter written by the

EscambiaBoard of Commissioners and would appreciate FDOTinput on our understanding that the first bridge will be

four feet narrower than the existing bridge, and also that the bridge deck will not be wide enough for two lanes of traffic

plus a 8' emergency lane in each direction. The Council hasasked for your attendance to provide some clarification on

the subject, before the review/comment period closes for the 90%design plans.

Additionally, at the urging of local residents, the Council is considering challenging the FONSIas it relates to impacts of

Deadman's Island.We would also like to discussthis with you.

Would you be able to attend our meeting on 11/30 at 6:307 Myself and City Manager BuzEddyare available to meet

prior to the City Council meeting to discussthese items.

Thank you, and we hope you have a great Thanksgiving.

Samantha D.Abell

Deputy City Manager

City of Gulf Breeze, FL

850.203.6033 (0)

850.377.4143 (c)

SC;UYof§uU Breeze

1



BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA

Telephone (850) 595-4902
Toll Free (866) 730-9152

Telefax (850) 595-4908
(Suncom) 695-4902

Wilson B. Robertson
DistrIcIOne

Douglas B. Underhill
DislricllWo

LumonliAay
District Three

Grover C. Robinson, IV

DistrIcIFour

221 Palafox Place, Suite 400
RO. Box 1591

Pensacola, Florida 32591-1591

October 13, 2016

The Honorable Secretary Jim Boxold

605 Suwannee Street

Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0450

The Honorable Secretary Tommy Barfield

Highway 90 East

Chipley, Florida 32428-0607

RE: Pensacola Bay Bridge

Gentlemen:

Escambia County is excited about all of the transportation projects beginning construction in Northwest

Florida. The support of Secretary Barfield and yourself has been tremendous and has allowed us to

meet the transportation needs of growth in our area. I am writing you today to discuss one of those

projects, perhaps the largest ever in Northwest Florida.

The Pensacola Bay Bridge replacement is important to the entire region serving major east/west

transportation needs along the coast. The smooth movement of traffic along the corridor during

construction is very important for the safety of our residents and visitors.

In discussions with FOOTstaff, Escambia County was recently made aware that the construction

progression of the Pensacola Bay Bridge could place Public Safety access in a compromised position. It

appears that the construction width of the southbound bridge will not include the Pedestrian portion at

the same level, meaning the first bridge will be four feet narrower than the existing bridge. Our concern

is the main portion of the bridge deck will not be wide enough for 2 lanes of traffic as well as a minimum

8' emergency lane in each direction (see diagram, attachment 1). We share the FOOTgoals for Public

Safety. Attached is a memo from the Director of Public Safety outlining his concerns (attachment 2).

It was our understanding the scope for this project originally stated that proposals were required to

provide vehicle refuge lanes during the MOT on the first bridge providing an improved condition than

we currently have (two 11' travel lanes and a 6' shoulder). The MOT drawings we have seen do not

seem to meet the original scope requirement presented to local governments and could have a major

negative impact on incident management on the bridge as well as emergency vehicles crossing the

bridge.



Please evaluate to determine a better way to implement safety in this first southbound bridge. Any

help, including the emergency management staff, we can provide is available upon request

Again, we realize there are no easy answers and we are excited about the new bridge and the new

bridge team. However we cannot sacrifice safety, especially in the interim use. We appreciate

everything the Department has done for Northwest Florida and look forward to working with your staff

to get the best remedy for this issue.

Thank you for your time and assistance.

Sincerely,

£~6f---
Escambia County Commissioner

District 4

CC: The Honorable Phillip Gainer, Interim Secretary, District 3

The Honorable Ashton Hayward, Mayor, City of Pensacola

The Honorable Lane Lynchard, Chalrman, Santa RosaCounty Commission

The Honorable Matt Dannheisser, Mayor, Gulf Breeze



.~...
0::

~~
<>:: .... ...."..L::~
~~- ...
!.J.; ..... I::-~ cu
,.:! E

"''"' ..c:"",,,:'.::I <J-: ... (II

~



Attachment 2

Board of County Commissioners. Escambia County, Florida

MichaelD.Weaver, Director

Public Safety Department

MEMORANDUM

To: Joy Blackmon, P.UbIiCw~~ksfirector

Mike Weaver, Direct~FROM:

DATE: 10/12/2016

RE: Pensacola Bay Bridge

I have been made aware that the construction progression of the PensacolaBayBridge will

place Public Safety accessin a compromised position. I understand that the construction width

of the southbound bridge will not be able to utilize the pedestrian portion of the bridge and

therefore will not be able to handle 4 lanesof traffic and a minimum of 8' emergency lanes in

each direction. I understand that it would be like this while the northbound bridge is being

constructed (likely to be 1.S to 2 years).

We are very concerned for accessto public safety vehicles during this timeframe. If only one

emergency lane is provided this would greatly restrict accessto the opposing traffic. If the

emergency lane was alternated incrementally along the length of the bridge, then accessfrom

one end of the bridge to the other would be greatly restricted, as there would only be an

incremental emergency lane provided with no way to get to the opposing traffic's emergency

lane or for the vehicles to pull to the side where there is no emergency lane.

Pleasereconsider the provision of emergency lanes in both directions for the sake of the

motoring public. Thank you in advance for your consideration.

6575 North W Street • Pensacola, Florida 32505--1714

Telephone (850) 471-6400 • Fax (850) 471-6455 www.myescambia.com


	November 30 2016 Executive Session agenda
	Deadmans Island Response for Challenge to Federal Registry
	Deadmans Island Response to Challenge Memo 2
	Deadmans Island Emails

	Authorization to proceed with emergency repair to Deadman's Island Isthmus 11 28 16
	Resolution 35-16 CTA Homestead
	Resolution 36-16 CTA Osceola
	Resolutions 37-16 AND 38-16 CTA IL Palm Bay and Jax
	Gulf Breeze Resolution - IL at Palm Bay
	Gulf Breeze Resolution - IL at Jacksonville

	Surplus Vehicle Purchase 11 28 16
	Interlocal Agreement with SRC Supervisor of Elections
	Interlocal Agreement with SRC Supervisor of Elections
	SRC Supervisor of Elections Interlocal Agreement 2016

	GJTBS October 2016 Invoice 11 27 16
	Messer Caparello Statement 457880 Pmt 11 02 16
	BryantMillerOlive Invoice 63529 11 09 16
	Jenner and Block LLP Inv 9378136 pmt Oct 2016
	Smolker Bartlett Loeb Hinds Sheppard Invoice 96819 and 96820 Oct 2016
	Pensacola Bay Bridge
	Pensacola Bay Bridge
	FDOT Kerrie Harrell Email




